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REPORT OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

The Executive Management submits this report, together with the financial statements of Bangkok Bank
Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch (“the Branch”), for the year then ended 31 December 2022.

THE BRANCH

The Branch is a branch of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited (“Head Office”) which was
incorporated in Thailand. The Branch was established in Cambodia with the Ministry of Commerce
under registration no. 00011981, dated 3 November 2014. The Branch obtained a license from the
National Bank of Cambodia (“the NBC") to operate as a commercial branch with effect from 12
November 2014 and officially commenced its operations on 30 December 2014. On 20 July 2021, the
Branch obtained a banking license with an indefinite period from the NBC.

The principal activities of the Branch are the provision of commercial banking and related financial
services in Cambodia.

The Branch’s registered office is at No. 344 (1%t and 2™ Floor), Mao Tse Toung Boulevard, Sangkat
Toul Svay Prey |, Khan Chamkarmon, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Branch’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the statement
of comprehensive income.

HEAD OFFICE’S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION

There was no change in Head Office’s capital contribution to the Branch during the year.

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES ON LOANS AND ADVANCES

Before the financial statements of the Branch were drawn up, the Executive Management took
reasonable steps to ensure that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad loans or
making of allowance for expected credit losses and satisfied themselves that all known bad loans had
been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for expected credit losses on loans and
advances.

At the date of this report and based on the best of knowledge, the Executive Management is not aware
of any circumstances which would render the amount written off for bad loans or the amount of the
allowance for expected credit losses in the financial statements of the Branch inadequate to any
material extent.

1

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch
344 (1= and 2™ floor), Mao Tse Toung Blvd, Toul Svay Prey I, Khan Boeng Keng Kang, Phnom Penh, 120106 Cambodia
Tel. (855) 23 224 404-9 Fax. (855) 23 224 429 SWIFT: BKKBKHPP www.bangkokbank.com/cambodia

OM&/”



Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

REPORT OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT (continued)

ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Branch were drawn up, the Executive Management took
reasonable steps to ensure that any assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course
of business at their value as shown in the accounting records of the Branch, have been written down
to an amount which they might be expected to realise.

At the date of this report and based on the best of knowledge, the Executive Management is not aware
of any circumstances which would render the values attributed to the assets in the financial statements
of the Branch misleading in any material respect.

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen which
would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements of the Branch misleading or inappropriate in any material respect.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

At the date of this report, there is:

() No charge on the assets of the Branch which has arisen since the end of the financial year which
secures the liabilities of any other person, and

(i) No contingent liability in respect of the Branch that has arisen since the end of the financial year
other than in the ordinary course of banking business.

No contingent or other liability of the Branch has become enforceable, or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion
of the Executive Management, will or may have a material effect on the ability of the Branch to meet
its obligations as and when they become due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the Executive Management is not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise
dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Branch, which would render any amount
stated in the financial statements misleading in any material respect.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The Branch'’s financial performance for the year was not, in the opinion of the Executive Management,
materially affected by any items, transactions or events of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the year and the date of this report any items,
transactions or events of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Executive
Management, to substantially affect the results of the operations of the Branch for the period in which
this report is made.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no significant events occurring during the period between the end of the reporting
period and the date of authorisation of these financial statements, which would require adjustments
or disclosures to be made in the financial statements.




Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch
REPORT OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT (continued)
THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

The members of the Executive Management of the Branch during the year and as at the date of this
report are:

Ms. Jarinee Lapwutirat Vice President and Branch Manager
(appointed on 13 September 2022)
Ms. Yiamsri Ubonpong Assistant Vice President and Branch Manager
(Transferred to Head Office on 6 April 2022)
Ms. Narisa Panumas Assistant Vice President and Operation Manager
Ms. Pranee Siriswaspiphat Assistant Vice President and Compliance Manager
Mr. Wanchat Mangkhalodom Assistant Marketing Manager
Mr. Sothea Dith Treasury Manager
AUDITOR

Ernst & Young (Cambodia) Ltd. is the auditor of the Branch.

THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT’S INTEREST

No management member held any interest in the equity of the Branch. No arrangement existed to
which the Branch is a party with object of enabling the members to obtain an interest in the Branch or
in any corporate body.

THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT’S BENEFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no arrangement existed, to which the Branch is a party, whose
object was to enable the Executive Management of the Branch to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Branch or any other corporate body.

No Executive Management of the Branch has received or become entitled to receive any benefit by
reason of a contract made by the Branch or with a firm of which the management is a member, or with
a company in which the management has a material financial interest other than those disclosed in
the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Executive Management is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the respective financial position of the Branch as at 31 December 2022, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Cambodian International
Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs"). The Executive Management oversees preparation of these
financial statements by management who is required to:

() Adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates and then apply them consistently;

(i) Comply with the disclosure requirements and guidelines of CIFRSs or, if there have been any
departures in the interest of fair presentation, these have been appropriately disclosed, explained
and quantified in the financial statements;

(iii) Maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal controls:

(iv) Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume
that the Branch will continue operations in the foreseeable future; and

(v) Effectively control and direct the Branch in all material decisions affecting the operations and
performance and ascertain that these have been properly reflected in the financial statements.



Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch
REPORT OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT (continued)

STATEMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Branch and to ensure that the accounting
records comply with the applicable accounting system. It is also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Branch and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Executive Management confirms that the Branch have complied with the above requirements in
preparing the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We hereby approve the accompanying financial statements which give a true and fair view of the

respective financial position of the Branch as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with CIFRSs.

On behalf of the Executive Management:

Ms. Jarinee Lapwutirat
Vice President & Branch Manager

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia

31 March 2023
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Reference: 61339142/67050168

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To: The Head Office of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited,
Cambodia Branch (“the Branch”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Branch
as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Cambodian International Standards on Auditing (“CISAs").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Branch in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and Auditors issued by the Ministry
of Economy and Finance of Cambodia, together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Cambodia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Branch for the year ended 31 December 2021 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 12 April 2022.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The other information obtained at the date of the auditor’s report is the Report of Executive
Management. Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Executive Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with CIFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Responsibilities of the Executive Management for the Financial Statements (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Branch’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Branch or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The executive management is responsible for overseeing the Branch’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with CISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Branch’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Branch'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Branch to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

: ’~ 5 ~&,
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Assomate Partner

<%>

Ernst & Young (Cambodia) Ltd.
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Auditors

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia

31 March 2023

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2022

Notes
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5
Placements with National
Bank of Cambodia (“NBC”)
and other bank 6
Statutory deposits 7
Loans and advances 8
Other assets 9
Property and equipment 10
Intangible assets 11
Right-of-use assets 12
Deferred tax assets 17.2
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND HEAD
OFFICE’S EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 13
Deposits from other banks 14
Borrowing 15
Subordinated debt 16
Income tax payable 17.1
Lease liabilities 12
Other liabilities 18
Provision for off-balance
sheet items 26
Provision for employee
benefits
TOTAL LIABILITIES
HEAD OFFICE’S EQUITY
Head Office’s capital
contribution 19

Accumulated losses
Cumulative exchange
differences on translation

TOTAL HEAD OFFICE’S

EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
HEAD OFFICE’S EQUITY

2022 2021
uUs$ KHR’000 uUss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
30,759,376 126,636,351 52,306,470 213,096,559
1,973,805 8,126,155 7,088,128 28,877,033
13,683,204 56,333,751 13,683,491 55,746,542
47,959,408 197,448,883 30,981,473 126,218,521
157,055 646,595 275,636 1,122,942
159,850 658,102 267,856 1,091,245
226,228 931,381 309,190 1,259,640
262,560 1,080,960 227,785 927,996
284,865 1,172,788 343,600 1,399,826
95,466,351 393,034,966 105,483,629 429,740,304
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456
997,023 4,104,744 5,008,863 20,406,108
3,001,024 12,355,216 3,000,000 12,222,000
157,432 648,148 - -
357,814 1,473,120 215,338 877,287
87,199 358,997 126,179 514,053
126,994 522,834 212,784 866,882
- - 19,256 78,449
46,309,726 190,657,141 57,052,408 232,431,510
50,000,000 200,000,000 50,000,000 200,000,000
(843,375)  (3,392,345)  (1,568,779)  (6,357,070)
- 5,770,170 - 3,665,864
49,156,625 202,377,825 48,431,221 197,308,794
95,466,351 393,034,966 105,483,629 429,740,304

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income
Other operating income

Net fee and commission income
Total operating income

Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
(Provisions for)/reversal of
expected credit losses

Income before income tax
Income tax expense

Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income:

Exchange difference on
translation

Total comprehensive income

Notes

21
22

23

24

25

26

17

2022 2021
UsSs$ KHR’000 uUss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
3,094,083 12,645,517 1,419,187 5,773,253
(741,087) (3,028,823) (738,420) (3,003,893)
2,352,996 9,616,694 680,767 2,769,360
67,566 276,142 46,489 189,117
576,676 2,356,875 436,164 1,774,315
2,997,238 12,249,711 1,163,420 4,732,792
(575,418) (2,351,733) (684,837) (2,785,917)
(1,078,719) (4,408,725) (851,630) (3,464,430)
(367,917) (1,503,677) 974,371 3,963,741
975,184 3,985,576 601,324 2,446,186
(249,780) (1,020,851) (190,701) (775,772)
725,404 2,964,725 410,623 1,670,414
- 2,104,306 - 1,395,061
725,404 5,069,031 410,623 3,065,475

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN HEAD OFFICE’S EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Cumulative

exchange

Head Office’s differences on

capital contribution Accumulated losses translation Total

uUs$ KHR’000 uUs$ KHR’000 KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
As at 1 January 2022 50,000,000 200,000,000 (1,568,779) (6,357,070) 3,665,864 48,431,221 197,308,794
Net income for the year - - 725,404 2,964,725 - 725,404 2,964,725
Exchange difference on translation - - - - 2,104,306 - 2,104,306
Total comprehensive income - - 725,404 2,964,725 2,104,306 725,404 5,069,031
As at 31 December 2022 50,000,000 200,000,000 (843,375) (3,392,345) 5,770,170 49,156,625 202,377,825
As at 1 January 2021 50,000,000 200,000,000 (1,979,402) (8,027,484) 2,270,803 48,020,598 194,243,319
Net income for the year - - 410,623 1,670,414 - 410,623 1,670,414
Exchange difference on translation - - - - 1,395,061 - 1,395,061
Total comprehensive income - - 410,623 1,670,414 1,395,061 410,623 3,065,475
As at 31 December 2021 50,000,000 200,000,000 (1,568,779) (6,357,070) 3,665,864 48,431,221 197,308,794

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.



Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2022

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Minimum tax expense
Provision for/(reversal of) expected
credit losses

Provision for employee benefits

Changes in working capital:
Placements with NBC and other

bank

Statutory deposit

Loans and advances
Other assets

Deposits from customers
Deposits from other banks

Other liabilities

Employee benefits paid
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating

activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds from borrowings
Payment of principal portion of lease

liabilities

Net cash (used in)/provided by
financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year
Exchange difference on translation

Cash and cash equivalents at end

of year

Notes

25

24

17

10
11

15
15

5

2022 2021
uss$ KHR’000 uss KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
975,184 3,985,577 601,324 2,446,186
408,674 1,670,251 418,181 1,701,161
. - 21,890 89,049
367,917 1,503,677 (974,371) (3,963,741)
19,256 78,699 987 4,015
1,771,031 7,238,204 68,011 276,670
5,069,356 20,718,458 (6,609,027) (26,885,522)
287 1,173 10,000,198 40,680,805
(17,694,785) (72,318,586) (16,393,679) (66,689,486)
118,581 484,641 27,676 112,586
(11,507,670)  (47,031,847) (652,662) (2,655,029)
4,619,922 18,881,621 (5,640,842) (22,946,945)
(47,263) (193,164) (62,001) (252,220)
(17,670,541) (72,219,500) (19,262,326) (78,359,141)
(29,205) (119,361) (1,039) (4,227)
(33,613) (137,376) (23,590) (95,964)

(17,733,359)

(72,476,237)

(19,286,955)

(78,459,332)

(16,023) (65,486) (21,592) (87,836)

- - (140,939) (573,340)

(16,023) (65,486) (162,531) (661,176)
(5.479,909) (22,396,388)  (4,372,343) (17,786,691)
1,468,069 5,999,998 8,933,220 36,340,339
(93,982) (384,104) (205,187) (834,701)
(4,105,822)  (16,780,494) 4,355,690 17,718,947

(21,855,204)

(89,322,217)

(15,093,796)

(61,401,561)

Additional information on operation cash flows from interest are as follows:

Interest received

Interest paid

52,618,860 214,369,236 67,712,656 273,897,693

- 1,606,953 - 1,873,104

30,763,656 126,653,972 52,618,860 214,369,236
2022 2021

uUss$ KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000

(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)

3,060,362 12,507,699 1,818,681 7,398,394

(754,177) (3,082,321) (702,100) (2,856,143)

11

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.



Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2022

21

2.2

2.3

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Branch is a branch of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited which was incorporated in
Thailand. The Branch was established in Cambodia with the Ministry of Commerce under
registration no. 00011981, dated 3 November 2014. The Branch obtained a license from the
National Bank of Cambodia to operate as a commercial branch with effect from 12 November
2014 and officially commenced its operations on 30 December 2014. On 20 July 2021, the
Branch obtained a banking license with an indefinite period from the NBC.

The principal activities of the Branch are the provision of commercial banking and related
financial services in Cambodia.

The Branch'’s registered office is at No. 344 (1st and 2" Floor), Mao Tse Toung Boulevard,
Sangkat Toul Svay Prey I, Khan Chamkarmon, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia.

Employees
As at 31 December 2022, the Branch has a total of 21 employees (2021: 23 employees).
Approval of the Branch’s financial statements

The financial statements were authorized for issue by Executive Management on 31 March
2023.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Branch have been prepared on historical cost basis, except
for any financial assets and financial liabilities that have been measured at fair value.

Basis of preparation

The Branch's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Cambodian
International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSS”).

Fiscal year
The Branch'’s fiscal year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.
Functional and presentation currency

The national currency of Cambodia is the Khmer Riel (“KHR”). However, as the Branch
transacts its business and maintains its accounting records primarily in United States dollar
(“US$”), management has determined the US$ to be the Branch’s measurement and
presentation currency as it reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and
circumstances of the Branch.

Presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in US$, which is the Branch’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in currencies other than US$ are translated into US$ at the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than US$ which are outstanding at the reporting date are translated into US$
at the rate of exchange ruling at that date. Exchange differences arising on translation are
recognized in profit or loss.

12



Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2.3

2.4

2.5

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Functional and Presentational Currency (continued)

Translation of US$ in KHR

The translation of the US$ amounts into Khmer Riel (“KHR”) is presented in the financial
statements to comply with the Law on Accounting and Auditing and the relevant CIFRSs using
the closing and average rate for the year then ended.

Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate ruling at each reporting date, whereas
income and expense items are translated at the average rate for the year then ended. All
resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of equity. Such
translation should not be construed as a representation that the US$ amounts represent, or
have been or could be, converted into KHR at that or any other rate. All values in US$ and
KHR are rounded to the nearest dollar and thousand KHR (“KHR’000”), respectively, except
otherwise indicated.

The financial statements are presented in KHR based on the applicable exchange rates per
US$1 as follows:

2022 2021
Closing rate 4,117 4,074
Average rate 4,087 4,068

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Branch’s financial statements are disclosed below. These standards and
amendments to CIFRSs issued but not yet effective are not expected to have a significant
impact on the financial position or performance of the Branch.

e CIFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
¢ Amendments to CIAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
o Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to CIAS 8

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to CIAS 1 and CIFRS Practice
Statement 2

o Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction -
Amendments to CIAS 12

New and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year,
except that the Bank has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting 1
January 2022. Adoption of these pronouncements did not have any significant impact on the
Bank’s financial position or performance unless otherwise indicated.

e Onerous Contract - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to CIAS 37
o Reference to Conceptual Framework - Amendments to CIFRS 3

e Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments to CIAS
16 Leases

e CIFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards - Subsidiary
as a first-time adopter

e CIFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial
liabilities
e CIAS 41 Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurements.
13



Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.1

3.11

3.1.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

Financial instruments

The Branch classifies all its financial assets and financial liabilities based on its business
model for managing the assets’ contractual terms measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is an amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

Balances with NBC, balances with other banks, loans and advances to customers

The Branch measures balances with the NBC (except statutory deposits), balances with other
banks, loans and advances to customers, and other financial assets assets (except for
prepayments) at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified date to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Business model assessment

The Branch makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is
held at a portfolio level that best reflects how the assets are managed. Factors considered
includes:

e The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

e How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Branch’s
management;

e The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

e How managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

e The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and its expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity
is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Branch’s
stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realized.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect
contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial
assets.
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.1

3.1.3

3.14

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) test

For purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs),
as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Branch considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition.

In making the assessment, the Branch considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
e leverage features;

e prepayment and extension terms;

¢ terms that limit the Branch’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
loans); and

o features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).

Non-recourse loans

In some cases, loans made by the Branch that are secured by collateral of the borrower limit
the Branch’s claim to cash flows of the underlying collateral (non-recourse loans). The Branch
applies judgment in assessing whether the non-recourse loans meet the SPPI criterion. The
Branch typically considers the following information when making this judgement:

o whether the contractual arrangement specifically defines the amounts and dates of the
cash payments of the loan;

e the fair value of the collateral relative to the amount of the secured financial asset;

¢ the ability and willingness of the borrower to make contractual payments, notwithstanding
a decline in the value of collateral;

e whether the borrower is an individual or a substantive operating entity or is a special-
purpose entity;

e the Branch’s risk of loss on the asset relative to a full-recourse loan;

e the extent to which the collateral represents all or a substantial portion of the borrower’s
assets; and

o whether the Branch will benefit from any upside from the underlying assets.
Reclassification

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period
after the Branch changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

The Branch derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Branch neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.1

3.14

3.15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i)
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OCI is recognized in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Modifications and forbearance of financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Branch evaluates whether the cash
flows of the modified asset are substantially different.

If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the
original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset
is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value plus any eligible
transaction costs. Any fees received as part of the modification are accounted for as follows:

e Fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that
represent reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of the asset; and

e Other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

o |If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective
of the modification is usually to maximize recovery of the original contractual terms rather
than to originate a new asset with substantially different terms. If the Branch plans to
modify a financial asset in a way that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first
considers whether a portion of the asset should be written off before the modification
takes place (see below for write-off policy). This approach impacts the result of the
guantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in
such cases.

e If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not
result in derecognition of the financial asset, then the Branch first recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset
and recognises the resulting adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.
For floating-rate financial assets, the original effective interest rate used to calculate the
modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market terms at the time of the
modification. Any costs or fees incurred and fees received as part of the modification
adjust the gross carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over
the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

¢ If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then
the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is
presented as interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method.
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.1

3.1.6

3.1.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Branch has a legal right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal
or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Branch has access at that
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Branch measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions
for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Branch uses valuation techniques that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would
take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally
the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Branch
determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the
fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to
be insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or
loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation
is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the
Branch measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at
an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit
risk that are managed by the Branch on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit
risk are measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or
paid to transfer a net short position) for the particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level
adjustments - e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk adjustments that reflect the measurement
on the basis of the net exposure - are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the
basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less
than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on which the amount
could be required to be paid.

The Branch recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.1

3.1.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Expected credit loss (“ECL”)

The Branch recognizes a loss allowance for ECLs on the following financial instruments that
are not measured at FVTPL:

¢ Financial assets that are debt instruments; and
e Loan commitments issued.

The Branch measures loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL except for other
financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial
recognition for which they are measured as 12-month ECL.

The 12-month ECL is the portion of ECL that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial
instruments for which a 12-month ECL is recognized are referred to as ‘Stage 1 financial
instruments’.

Life-time ECL is the ECL that results from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognized but
which are not credit-impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 2 financial instruments’.

At each reporting date, the Branch assesses whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition. When credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Branch considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Branch’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and includes forward-looking
information.

If credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition or if the credit quality of the
financial instruments improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Branch is exposed to credit risk.

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Branch assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition
at each reporting date. Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends
on the characteristics of the financial instrument and the borrower, and the geographical
region.

The Branch considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an
asset is more than 30 days past due for long-term facilites and 14 days for short-term
facilities. Days past due is determined by counting the number of days since the earliest
elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due date is
determined without considering any grace period that might be available to the borrower.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial
recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured as 12-month
ECL.
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.1

3.1.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) (continued)
Definition of default
The Branch considers a financial asset to be in default when:

e The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Branch in full, without recourse
by the Branch to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

e The Branch considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when
an asset is more than or equal to 30 days past due for long-term facilities and 14 days
past due for short-term facilities

¢ When the account undergoes debt restructuring or rescheduling
¢ When account shows deterioration in its credit profile

e When accounts are crossed default by obligor(s) of the same borrower type within the
same loan listing source.

Measurement of ECL
ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit loss measured as follows:

e Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of
all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Branch expects to receive);

e Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows; and

e Undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Branch if the commitment is drawn down and
the cash flows that the Branch expects to receive.

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:
e Probability of default (“PD”);

e Loss given default (“‘LGD”); and

e Exposure at default (“EAD”).

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD.
Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.

The Branch adopt the delinquency based transition matrix, historical loss rate model and
proxy models to estimate its PD.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Branch estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties.
The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry
and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. The LGD is computed
based on a workout style method. The workout style method is based on a set of derived
estimated cash flows (i.e. collection or sale of collateral) during the workout period and
discounted by the effective interest rate to the date of default.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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3.1

3.1.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) (continued)

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Branch derives the EAD
from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount
allowed under the contract and arising from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its
gross carrying amount at the time of default. For lending commitments, the EADs are potential
future amounts that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical
observations and forward-looking forecasts. For some financial assets, EAD is determined by
modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in time using scenario
and statistical techniques.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for Stage 1 financial
assets, the Branch measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum
contractual period (including any borrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to
credit risk, even if, for credit risk management purposes, the Branch considers a longer period.
The maximum contractual period extends to the date at which the Branch has the right to
require repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is
replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is
made of whether the financial asset should be derecognized and ECL is measured as follows.

¢ If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating
the cash shortfalls from the existing asset.

o If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing
financial asset at the time of its derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the
cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected
date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the
existing financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Branch assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired (referred to as ‘Stage 3
financial assets’). A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
¢ Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Branch on terms that the Branch would not
consider otherwise;

e |t is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or

e The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually
considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving
contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment. In addition, a loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered credit-
impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is different.
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3.1

3.1.8

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) (continued)
Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position

Allowance for ECLs is presented in the statement of financial position for financial assets
measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

Loans and advances are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally
the case when the Branch determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries resulting from the Branch’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains,
which will be presented in ‘net impairment loss on financial assets/other income’ in profit or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For statement of cash flow purposes, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, deposits
with other banks and NBC, and highly-liquid short-term investments with an original maturity
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.

Deposits with other banks

Deposits with banks are stated at cost less allowance for expected credit losses.
Placements with NBC

Placements with NBC are stated at cost.

Statutory deposits

Capital guarantee and reserve requirements are maintained with the NBC in compliance with
the Cambodian Law on Banking and Financial Institutions determined at defined percentages
of minimum share capital and total deposits from customers, respectively.

Loans and advances

‘Loans and advances’ in the statement of financial position include loans and advances
measured at amortized cost less impairment based on ECL. They are initially measured at
fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

Other assets

Other assets are carried at cost less impairment if any.
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3.8

3.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. The carrying
amounts are reviewed at each financial year-end to assess whether they are recorded in
excess of their recoverable amount, and where carrying values exceed this recoverable
amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged in the statement of comprehensive income using a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets, except for work in progress, at the
following annual rates:

Leasehold improvement 10 years
Computer and IT equipment 3-5years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Branch and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

When assets are sold, their cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the
accounts. Any resulting gain or loss from their disposal is included in the statement of
comprehensive income. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the statement of comprehensive
income in other operating income. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
the revaluation surplus are transferred to retained profits.

Fully depreciated items of property and equipment are retained in the financial statements
until they are disposed of or written off.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising acquired computer software licenses and related costs are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss. Acquired computer
software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific
software and bring it to use.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of 5
years.

Software under development includes the costs of developing new software not fully
completed as at reporting date. Software under development is not amortized until such time
as the relevant software is completed and put into operational use.

Costs associated with the development or maintenance of computer software are recognized
as expenses when incurred.
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3.10

3.11

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Branch assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

The Branch as a lessee

The Branch applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Branch recognizes lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Branch recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The Branch’s leased assets are office rental for all the branches.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Branch at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Branch recognizes lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Branch uses its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Branch applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option) and lease of low-value assets. The Branch leases
photocopiers that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Deposits from customers and other banks
The Branch recognises deposits due to customers and other banks at fair value minus

incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest rate method when funds are transferred to the Branch.

23



Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowings and subordinated debt

Borrowings and subordinated debts are initially measured at fair value minus incremental
direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
rate method.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are accrued in the financial period in which the associated
services are rendered by the employees of the Branch. A liability is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid if the Branch has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay as a
result of past service provided by employee, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

Retrospective seniority indemnity

Retroactive seniority indemnity is accrued based on the present value of expected future
payments. The retroactive seniority payment was fully settled during year.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Branch has a legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

Regulatory provision

Regulatory reserves are set up to account for the variance of provision between loan
impairment computed in accordance with applicable accounting framework and regulatory
provision computed in accordance with National Bank of Cambodia’s Prakas No. B7-017-344
dated 1 December 2017 and Circular No. B7-018-001 Sor Ror Chor Nor dated 16 February
2018 on credit risk classification and provision on impairment for banks and financial
institutions. The Branch shall compare the provision calculated in accordance with Article 49
to 71 and the provision calculated in accordance with Article 72, and to record:

i. Incase that the regulatory provision calculated in accordance with Article 72 is lower than
provision calculated in accordance with Article 49 to 71, the Branch shall record the
provision calculated in accordance with applicable accounting framework; and

i. In case that the regulatory provision calculated in accordance with Article 72 is higher
than provision calculated in accordance with Article 49 to 71, the Branch shall record the
provision calculated in accordance with applicable accounting framework and transfer the
difference from retained earnings or accumulated loss account to the regulatory reserves.

The said Prakas on regulatory provisioning requires banks and financial institutions to classify

their loan portfolio into five classes and provide general and specific allowance based on the
following loan classification:
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3.15

3.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Regulatory provision (continued)

Classification Number of days past due Allowance rate
Standard 0 to 14 days (short-term)

0 to 29 days (long-term) 1%
Special mention 15 days to 30 days (short-term)

30 days to 89 days (long-term) 3%
Substandard 31 days to 60 days (short-term)

90 days to 179 days (long-term) 20%
Doubtful 61 days to 90 days (short-term)

180 days to 359 days (long-term) 50%
Loss From 91 days (short-term)

360 days or more (long-term) 100%

In December 2021, NBC issued Circular No. B7-021-2314 to provide additional guidance to
banks and financial institutions in classifying their loans which have been restructured up to
31 December 2021 and in providing the regulatory allowance. This Circular now requires
banks and financial institutions to classify their restructured loans as follows:

e Special mention, if a restructured loan is “viable” or deemed as “performing”
e Substandard, if a first-time restructured loan will need another restructuring
e Doubtful, if a second-time restructured loan will need another restructuring

e Loss, if a restructured loan is “non-viable” or deemed as “non-performing”.
Effective interest rate method

Effective interest rate (“EIR”) is a rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Branch estimates the expected cash flow by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not considering the
expected credit loss. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs,
and all other premiums or discounts.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue
or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not
have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial
instrument.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. It is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial asset
except for:

e Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. Credit-adjusted EIR is applied
to the amortised cost of the financial assets.

e Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but
subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. EIR to the amortised cost of
the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods is applied.
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3.16

3.17

3.18

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Effective interest rate method (continued)

Credit-adjusted effective interest rate is a rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payment or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the amortised cost of a
financial assets that is a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in the statement of
comprehensive income includes interest on financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Interest expense

Interest expense is also calculated using the EIR method for all financial liabilities held at
amortised cost. Interest expense presented in the statement of comprehensive income
includes financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.

Fee and commission

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a
financial asset or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate.

Other fee and commission income, including account servicing fees, are recognized as the
related services are performed.

A contract with a customer that results in a recognized financial instrument in the Branch’s
financial statements may be partially in the scope of CIFRS 9 and patrtially in the scope of
CIFRS 15. If this is the case, then the Branch first applies CIFRS 9 to separate and measure
the part of the contract that is in the scope of CIFRS 9 and then applies CIFRS 15 to the
residual.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Branch’s non-financial assets, other than contract assets and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. For intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available
for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time. An impairment loss
is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (‘CGU”)
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU (group of CGUSs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
CGU (group of CGUSs) on a pro-rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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3.

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Branch has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including
uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore has
accounted for them under IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
and has recognized the related expenses in ‘other expenses’.

(i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for
the period using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous period.

(i) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax asset are recognized for unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Branch expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognized in the statements of financial
position and is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Where it is not possible that there is an inflow of economic benefits, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the asset is not recognized in the statement of financial position and is
disclosed as a contingent asset, unless the probability of inflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible realizations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent assets unless
the probability of inflow of economic benefits is remote.

Rounding of amounts

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest dollar and nearest
thousand KHR for US$ and KHR amounts, respectively.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with CIFRSs requires the Branch
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of resources, liabilities,
income and expenses and the disclosures of contingent resources and contingent liabilities.

Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates
to change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the financial statements as
they become reasonably determinable.

The following are the critical judgments and key assumptions that have a significant risk of
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year:

a.

Classification of financial assets

The Branch classifies its financial assets depending on the business model for managing
those financial assets and whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are SPPI
on the principal amount outstanding. The Branch performs the business model
assessment based on observable factors such as:

¢ Performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the Branch’s key management personnel

¢ Risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

e Compensation of business units whether based on the fair value of the assets
managed or on the contractual cash flows collected

e Expected frequency, value and timing of sales.

In performing the SPPI test, the Branch applies judgment and considers relevant factors
such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, the period for which the
interest rate is set, contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash
flows, leverage features, prepayment and extension terms and other features that may
modify the consideration for the time value of money.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement
of financial position or disclosed in the notes to financial statements cannot be derived
from active markets, these are determined using internal valuation techniques using
generally accepted market valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values.

Leases

The Branch determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Branch has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options.
The Branch applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or
not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors such as leasehold improvements and location that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the
Branch reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise
the option to renew or to terminate.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

C.

Leases (continued)

Estimating the IBR for lease liabilities

The Branch cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it
uses its IBR to measure lease liabilities. The IBR for lease liabilities is the rate of interest
that the Branch would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the ROU asset in a
similar economic environment. The Branch estimates the IBR for lease liabilities using
observable inputs (by reference to prevailing risk-free rates) adjusted to take into account
the entity’s credit risk (i.e., credit spread).

Expected credit losses on financial assets

The Branch’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their
interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting
judgments and estimates include, among others:

o Segmentation of the portfolio, where the appropriate model or ECL approach is used

e Criteria for assessing if there has been a SICR and so allowances for debt financial
assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment

e Segmentation of debt financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective
basis

o Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

e Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic
inputs and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs

e Selection of forward-looking macroeconomics scenarios and their probability
weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable income together with future tax planning strategies.

Functional currency

CIAS 21 requires management to use its judgment to determine the entity’s functional
currency such that it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions that are relevant to the entity. In making this
judgment, the Branch considers the following:

(i) The currency that mainly influences prices for financial instruments and services (this
will often be the currency in which prices for its financial instruments and services are
denominated and settled);

(i) The currency in which funds from financing activities are generated; and

(iii) The currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash on hand

Balances with the NBC
Current and settlement
accounts
Negotiable certificate of
deposits (“NCDs”)

Balances with other banks
Current and savings accounts
Time deposits
Other cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents on
the statement of cash flows

Less: allowance for ECLs

Cash and cash equivalents -
net

2022 2021
UsSs$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
176,450 726,445 2,698,534 10,993,828
5,075,091 20,894,153 3,757,949 15,309,885
12,336,993 50,791,400 21,000,085 85,554,346
4,840,945 19,930,169 2,280,238 9,289,690
8,330,031 34,294,736 22,880,859 93,216,619
4,146 17,069 1,195 4,868
30,763,656 126,653,972 52,618,860 214,369,236
(4,280) (17,621) (312,390) (1,272,677)
30,759,376 126,636,351 52,306,470 213,096,559

NCDs with NBC and time deposits with other banks have original maturities of three months

or less.

Cash and cash equivalents — gross are maintained by currency as follows:

2022 2021
US$ KHR’000 US$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
US$ 30,566,646 125,842,882 50,958,014 207,602,949
KHR 193,925 798,389 1,104,129 4,498,222
Thai Bath (“THB”) 2,877 11,845 556,536 2,267,328
Others 208 856 181 737
30,763,656 126,653,972 52,618,860 214,369,236
Movements of allowance for ECLs are as follows:
2022 2021
US$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
At 1 January 312,390 1,272,677 1,713,538 6,931,261
Reversal of allowance for ECLs
(Note 26) (308,110) (1,259,246) (1,401,148) (5,699,870)
Exchange difference on
translation - 4,190 - 41,286
At 31 December 4,280 17,621 312,390 1,272,677
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Ranges of interest rate (per annum) are as follows:

2022 2021

Current and settlement accounts with NBC Nill Nill

NCDs with the NBC 0.50% - 3.42% 0.02% - 0.14%

Current and savings accounts with other banks 0.2% 0.2%

Time deposits with other banks 5.30% 0.38%-2.25%
PLACEMENTS WITH NBC AND OTHER BANK

2022 2021

Uss$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000

(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)

NCD with the NBC (i) 1,017,142 4,187,574 7,088,128 28,877,033

Time deposit with other bank (ii) 1,001,630 4,123,710 - -

Less: allowance for ECLs
(Note 26) (44,967)  (185,129) - -
At 31 December 1,973,805 8,126,155 7,088,128 28,877,033

() During the year, the Branch has pledged a NCD with NBC amounting to US$1,150,000
as collateral for Liquidity Providing Collateralised Operation (“LPCO”) (Note 15). The NCD
has maturity of 6 months with interest rate at 2.34% per annum (2021: US$7,083,000
having maturity of 3.5 months with interest rate ranging from 0.50% to 2.25% per annum).

(i) Time deposit with other bank has maturity of 1 year and earn interest at 3.50% per annum.

STATUTORY DEPOSITS

2022 2021
Uss$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Reserve requirements 8,683,204 35,748,751 8,683,491 35,376,542
Capital guarantee 5,000,000 20,585,000 5,000,000 20,370,000
13,683,204 56,333,751 13,683,491 55,746,542

Reserve requirements

Under NBC Prakas No. B7-020-230 dated 18 March 2020, commercial banks are required to
maintain certain cash reserves with NBC in the form of compulsory deposits, computed at 7%
of customer deposits and borrowings in KHR and other currencies (2021: 7% for KHR and
US$). Reserve requirements do not earn interest.

Capital guarantee

Under NBC Prakas No. B7-01-136 dated 15 October 2001, banks are required to maintain a
capital guarantee of 10% of registered capital with NBC. This deposit is not available for use
in the Branch’s day-to-day operations but is refundable when the Branch voluntarily ceases
to operate the business in Cambodia. Capital guarantee earns interest of 1.19% per annum
(2021: 0.04% per annum).
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8. LOANS AND ADVANCES

The Branch’s loans and advances are as follows:

Trust receipts
Overdraft
Short-term loans
Long-term loans

Accrued interest receivable
Gross carrying amount

Unamortised loan processing
fees

Carrying amount

Allowance for ECLs

Loans and advances - net

The movements of allowance for ECLs on loans and advances are as follows:

At 1 January

Provision during the year
(Note 26)

Exchange difference on
translation

At 31 December

2022 2021
uUs$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
1,791,270 7,374,659 3,743,430 15,250,734
241,297 993,420 271,196 1,104,853
20,715,232 85,284,610 14,608,924 59,516,756
29,412,587 121,091,621 15,827,448 64,481,023
52,160,386 214,744,310 34,450,998 140,353,366
77,640 319,644 43,919 178,926
52,238,026 215,063,954 34,494,917 140,532,292
(163,933) (674,912) (115,609) (470,991)
52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
(4,114,685) (16,940,159) (3,397,835) (13,842,780)
47,959,408 197,448,883 30,981,473 126,218,521
2022 2021
uUss$ KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
3,397,835 13,842,780 3,113,428 12,593,816
716,850 2,929,766 284,407 1,156,968
- 167,613 - 91,996
4,114,685 16,940,159 3,397,835 13,842,780

A reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount of loans and advances and
corresponding allowance for ECLs by stage for loans and advances measured at amortised

cost is as follows:

At 1 January 2022
New assets originated
Payments and assets
derecognised
Transfer to stage 1
Transfer to stage 2

Transfer to stage 3
At 31 December 2022
KHR’000 (Note 2.3)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
uss uss Us$ Us$
412,182 9,560 2,976,093 3,397,835
924,874 8,676 - 933,550
(210,482) (6,218) - (216,700)
(250,700) 250,700 - -
875,874 262,718 2,976,093 4,114,685
3,605,973 1,081,610 12,252,576 16,940,159
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At 1 January 2021

New assets originated
Payments and assets
derecognised

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Transfer to stage 1
Transfer to stage 2

Transfer to stage 3
At 31 December 2021
KHR’000 (Note 2.3)

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Cambodia Branch

Further analyses of carrying amount of loans and advances are as follows:

(i) By industry sector

Financial institutions
Agriculture

Service
Manufacturing
Import and export

Carrying amount

(i) By currency

Uss$
KHR

(iii)y By maturity

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

uUs$ uUs$ uUss$ Uss$

63,821 73,514 2,976,093 3,113,428

394,386 5,450 - 399,836

(45,504) (33,320) - (78,824)

(521) (36,084) - (36,605)

412,182 9,560 2,976,093 3,397,835

1,679,229 38,947 12,124,604 13,842,780
2022 2021

Us$ KHR’000 uUsSs$ KHR’000

(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)

9,103,566 37,479,381 5,629,725 22,528,100

6,001,133 24,706,665 1,600,120 6,518,889

13,943,381 57,404,900 1,036,974 4,224,632

23,026,013 94,798,096 26,127,149 106,442,005

- - 85,340 347,675

52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
2022 2021

uUss$ KHR’000 UsS$ KHR’000

(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)

45,278,359 186,411,004 30,549,707 124,459,506

6,795,734 27,978,038 3,829,601 15,601,795

52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301

Refer to Note 31 for maturity analysis on gross loans and advances.
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8. LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

(iv) By residency, relationship, exposure

2022 2021
uUs$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Residency
Residents 52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
Relationship
Non-related parties 52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
Exposure
Large 24,855,173 102,328,747 13,426,765 54,700,641
Non-large 27,218,920 112,060,295 20,952,543 85,360,660

52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301

Refer to Note 30.2 for credit analysis on loans and advances.

(v) By staging of the loan portfolio

2022 2021
US$ KHR’000 USs$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Stage 1 44,553,180 183,425,443 30,033,727 122,357,404
Stage 2 4,544,820 18,711,024 1,369,488 5,579,294
Stage 3 2,976,093 12,252,575 2,976,093 12,124,603

52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301

(vi) Ranges of interest rate (per annum)

2022 2021
Trust receipt 6.875% 7.25%
Overdraft 5.5% - 9% 7.5% - 9%
Short-term loans 4% - 9.71% 2.7% - 6%
Long-term loans 5.47% - 8.53% 2.9% -5.7%
9. OTHER ASSETS

2022 2021
uUss$ KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Refundable deposits 108,166 445,319 111,347 453,628
Prepayments 23,037 94,843 90,851 370,127
Other assets 25,852 106,433 73,438 299,187
157,055 646,595 275,636 1,122,942
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10.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At 1 January 2022

Additions

Exchange difference on translation

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2022

Charge during the year

Exchange difference on translation

At 31 December 2022
Net book value
At 31 December 2022

Furniture,
Leasehold  Computer and fixtures and
improvements IT equipment equipment Motor vehicle Total

Us$ UsS$ Us$ UsS$ US$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3)
661,569 339,190 93,241 1,110 1,095,110 4,461,478
- 4,524 11,499 - 16,023 65,486
- - - - - 47,571
661,569 343,714 104,740 1,110 1,111,133 4,574,535
462,645 275,189 88,310 1,110 827,254 3,370,233
66,103 55,495 2,431 - 124,029 506,907
- - - - - 39,293
528,748 330,684 90,741 1,110 951,283 3,916,433
132,821 13,030 13,999 - 159,850 658,102
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10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Furniture,
Leasehold Computer and fixtures and Construction
improvements  IT equipment equipment  Motor vehicle in progress Total
US$ Us$ UsS$ uUs$ Uss$ Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3)

Cost
At 1 January 2021 661,569 306,132 92,343 1,110 12,364 1,073,518 4,342,380
Additions - 20,694 898 - - 21,592 87,836
Transfer - 12,364 - - (12,364) - -
Exchange difference on
translation - - - - - - 31,262
At 31 December 2021 661,569 339,190 93,241 1,110 - 1,095,110 4,461,478
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2021 396,542 210,258 86,983 1,110 - 694,893 2,810,842
Charge during the year 66,103 64,931 1,327 - - 132,361 538,445
Exchange difference on
translation - - - - - - 20,946
At 31 December 2021 462,645 275,189 88,310 1,110 - 827,254 3,370,233
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 198,924 64,001 4,931 - - 267,856 1,091,245
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11.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
At 1 January 2022

Exchange difference on translation

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2022
Charge during the year

Exchange difference on translation

At 31 December 2022
Net book value
31 December 2022

Cost

At 1 January 2021
Additions

Transfer

Exchange difference on
translation

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2021

Charge during the year
Exchange difference on
translation

At 31 December 2021
Net book value
31 December 2021

Software

Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3)

405,943 1,653,812
- 17,455

405,943 1,671,267

96,753 394,172
82,962 339,066
- 6,648
179,715 739,886
226,228 931,381
Software under

Software development Total
US$ Uss$ uUs$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3)
33,940 231,064 265,004 1,071,941
140,939 - 140,939 573,340
231,064 (231,064) - -
- - - 8,531
405,943 - 405,943 1,653,812
18,252 - 18,252 73,829
78,501 - 78,501 319,342
- - - 1,001
96,753 - 96,753 394,172
309,190 - 309,190 1,259,640
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12.

LEASES

The Branch as lessee

The Branch entered into lease contracts for its offices, vehicle and office equipment. The
Branch applies the ‘lease of low-value assets and short-term lease’ recognition exemption for

the lease of vehicle, office equipment and other short-term leases.

Set out below are movements of the right-of-use assets for lease of the Branch’s offices and
the carrying amount of lease liabilities:

Right-of-use assets

2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 US$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Cost
At 1 January 959,987 3,910,987 888,202 3,592,777
Addition (lease term extension) 236,458 966,404 71,785 292,021
Exchange difference on translation - 48,373 - 26,189
At 31 December 1,196,445 4,925,764 959,987 3,910,987
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 732,202 2,982,991 524,883 2,123,152
Charge for the year 201,683 824,278 207,319 843,374
Exchange difference on translation - 37,535 - 16,465
At 31 December 933,885 3,844,804 732,202 2,982,991
Carrying amount
At 31 December 262,560 1,080,960 227,785 927,996
Lease liabilities
2022 2021
US$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
At 1 January 215,338 877,287 348,740 1,410,653
Addition 236,458 966,404 71,785 292,021
Accretion of interest 9,307 38,038 12,253 49,845
Payments (103,289) (422,142) (217,440) (884,546)
Exchange difference on translation - 13,533 - 9,314
At 31 December 357,814 1,473,120 215,338 877,287
Maturity analysis - contractual
undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year 361,305 1,487,493 217,440 884,546
More than one year but less than five
years - - - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 361,305 1,487,493 217,440 ~ 884,546
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12.

13.

LEASES (continued)

The amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

2022 2021
uUsS$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 201,683 824,278 207,319 843,374
Accretion of interest on lease
liabilities (Note 22) 9,307 38,038 12,253 49,845
Expenses for short-term lease
and lease of low-value assets
(Note 25) 44,517 181,941 26,627 108,319
Total amount recognized in
the statement of
Comprehensive income 255,507 1,044,257 246,199 1,001,538
DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
Deposits from customers comprise:
2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 uUS$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Current deposits 3,448,216 14,196,305 5,564,815 22,671,056
Savings deposits 24,496,236 100,851,004 33,171,581 135,141,021
Time deposits 8,949,271 36,844,149 9,664,997 39,375,198
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
Further analyses of deposits from customers are as follows:
() By currency
2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 US$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Us$ 36,643,510 150,861,331 48,069,091 195,833,477
KHR 234,188 964,152 108,554 442,249
THB 16,025 65,975 223,748 911,549
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275

(i) By maturity

Refer to Note 31 for maturity analyses on deposits from customers.
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13. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS (continued)

(iii) By customer type, residency and relationship

2022 2021
uUs$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Customer type
Individuals 19,445,141 80,055,646 15,614,168 63,612,120
Domestic corporations 17,448,582 71,835,812 32,787,225 133,575,155
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
Residency
Residents 36,137,541 148,778,256 46,222,184 188,309,178
Non-residents 756,182 3,113,202 2,179,209 8,878,097
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
Relationship
Non-related parites 36,835,902 151,653,409 48,297,019 196,762,055
Related parties 57,821 238,049 104,374 425,220
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
(iv) Ranges of interest rate (per annum)
2022 2021
Current deposits Nil Nil
Savings deposits 0% - 0.5% 0.5% - 1.00%
Time deposits 0.75% - 4.50% 1.00% - 5.00%
14, DEPOSITS FROM OTHER BANKS
2022 2021
uUss$ KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Current accounts 68,756 283,068 68,595 279,456
Time deposits 4,619,761 19,019,556 - -
4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456
Further analyses of deposits from banks are as follows:
(i) By currency
2022 2021
uUs$ KHR’000 uUs$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
uss$ 67,765 278,989 67,594 275,378
KHR 4,620,752 19,023,635 1,001 4,078
4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456
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14. DEPOSITS FROM OTHER BANKS (continued)

(i) By maturity
Refer to Note 31 for maturity analysis of deposits from other banks.

(iii) By residency and relationship

2022 2021
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Residency:

Residents 4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456

Relationship:
Non-related parties 4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456

(iv) Ranges of interest rate (per annum)

2022 2021
Current accounts Nil Nil
Time deposits 3.33% - 6.30% Nil

15. BORROWING
This is a borrowing denominated in KHR from the NBC in form of Liquidity Providing
Collateralised Operation (“LPCO”) by which the NCD (Note 6) is collateralised. The borrowing
has maturity of 3 months and bear interest rate at 5.30% (2021: 3.00%) per annum.

Movements of borrowing are as follows:

2022 2021

uUss$ KHR’000 uUsS$ KHR’000

(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)

At 1 January 5,008,863 20,406,108 447,986 1,812,103

Additions 1,468,069 5,999,998 8,933,220 36,340,339

Repayments of borrowings (5,479,909) (22,396,388) (4,372,343) (17,786,691)
Exchange difference on

translation - 95,026 - 40,357
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16.

17.

17.1

SUBORDINATED DEBT

This represents a long-term unsecured borrowing from Head Office with outstanding amount
as at 31 December 2022 of US$3,001,024 (31 December 2021: US$3,000,000) based on
agreement on 25 July 2018 and the memorandum on 25 June 2021 with the following terms

and conditions:

e Total credit facilities: US$3,000,000
e Maturity: 7 years starting from 31 July 2018 to 30 June 2025
e Principle repayment: Five equal annual instalments with US$600,000 each with

extended the repayment schedule as below:

- 1st principal repayment on June 30, 2024

- 2nd principal repayment on June 30, 2025

- 3rd principal repayment on June 30, 2026

- 4th principal repayment on June 30, 2027

- 5th principal repayment on June 30, 2028

Interest rate: Three-month LIBOR + 1.50%

Interest repayment: Quarterly based on Head Office’s notice

On 8 August 2018, the Branch obtained approval from the NBC allowing to include the above
Subordinated debt in Tier Il capital for the purpose of Net Worth calculation.

INCOME TAX

Components of income tax expense are as follows:

2022 2021
uUsS$ KHR’000 (USH] KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Current tax 191,045 780,801 - -
Deferred tax 58,735 240,050 190,701 775,772
249,780 1,020,851 190,701 775,772
Current income tax
Details of estimated current income tax expense are as follows:
2022 2021
uUss$ KHR’000 (USH] KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Accounting profit before
income tax 975,184 3,985,576 601,324 2,446,186
Income tax expense at
applicable tax rate of 20% 195,037 797,116 120,265 489,238
Non-deductible expenses 54,743 223,735 70,436 286,534
Effective income tax 249,780 1,020,851 190,701 775,772

In accordance with the Cambodian tax regulations, current income tax is calculated at the
higher of the taxable income for the year multiplied by the tax rate of 20% at the reporting

date and 1% of turnover.
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17. INCOME TAX (continued)
17.1  Current income tax (continued)

Movements of income tax payable are as follows:

2022 2021

US$ KHR’000 uss KHR’000

(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)

At 1 January - - - -

Current income tax expense 191,045 780,801 - -

Payments during the year (33,613) (137,376) - -
Exchange difference on

translation - 4,723 - -

At 31 December 157,432 648,148 - -

17.2 Deferred tax assets

Temporary differences recognised during the year giving rise to deferred tax assets are as

follows:
2022 2021
UsSs$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Deferred tax assets
ECLs on financial assets 262,966 1,082,631 189,383 771,546
Unamortised loan processing
fees 32,787 134,984 23,122 94,199
Lease liabilities 71,563 294,625 43,068 175,459
Tax losses carried forward - - 139,738 569,292
367,316 1,512,240 395,311 1,610,496
Deferred tax liabilities
Right-of-use assets (52,512) (216,192) (45,557) (185,599)
Depreciation and amortisation
of property and equipment
and intangible assets (29,939) (123,260) (6,154) (25,071)
(82,451) (339,452) (51,711) (210,670)
Movements of deferred tax assets - net are as follows:
2022 2021
US$ KHR’000 US$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
At 1 January 343,600 1,399,826 534,301 2,161,248
Charge during the year (58,735) (240,050) (190,701) (775,772)
Exchange difference on
translation 13,012 14,350
At 31 December 284,865 1,172,788 343,600 1,399,826

Future taxable profits are expected to be sufficient to recover the deferred tax assets;

accordingly, deferred tax assets are recognized.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities pertain to accrued operating expenses and other payables.

HEAD’S OFFICE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION

Capital contributed by Head Office are as follows:

2022 2021
UsS$ KHR’000 uUss KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Registered, issued, and fully
paid 50,000,000 200,000,000 50,000,000 200,000,000

On 22 March 2016, the NBC issued Prakas B7-016-117 on Minimum Registered Capital of
Banking and Financial Institutions requiring branches whose Head Office is rated “investment
grade” by a reputable and international rating agency to have a minimum registered capital of
KHR200.00 billion (approximately US$50.00 million).

The Head Office, Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, has investment grade rating
extended by a reputable rating agency. On 2 January 2023, the Branch notified to the NBC
on the investment grade rated BBB of its Head Office rated by Fitch on 22 December 2022
(2022: BBB by Fitch).

REGULATORY RESERVE
There is no regulatory reserve required as regulatory allowance of US$3,903,541 or KHR’000
15,953,770 (2021: US$3,718,171 or KHR’000 15,147,829) is lower than allowance for ECLs

per CIFRS 9 of US$4,559,989 or KHR'000 18,636,677 (2021: US$3,923,009 or KHR’000
15,982,339).

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income arises from:

2022 2021
uUss$ KHR’000 uUsS$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Loans and advances 2,591,500 10,591,460 1,242,752 5,055,515
Balances and placements with
NBC and other banks 502,583 2,054,057 176,435 717,738

3,094,083 12,645,517 1,419,187 5,773,253
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22.

23.

24,

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense arises from:

Time deposits
Subordinated debt and
borrowings

Savings deposits

Lease liabilities (Note 12)

NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fees and commission income
Remittance fee

Commitment fee and others

Fees and commission expense
Transfer fee

Net fees and commission
income

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Salaries
Other staff expenses and
benefits

2022 2021
uUsS$ KHR’000 Uss KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
333,477 1,362,921 327,518 1,332,343
313,874 1,282,803 211,790 861,563
84,429 345,061 186,859 760,142
9,307 38,038 12,253 49,845
741,087 3,028,823 738,420 3,003,893
2022 2021
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
480,724 1,964,719 255,578 1,039,692
354,226 1,447,721 323,138 1,314,525
834,950 3,412,440 578,716 2,354,217
(258,274)  (1,055,565) (142,552) (579,902)
576,676 2,356,875 436,164 1,774,315
2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
447,014 1,826,946 519,280 2,112,431
128,404 524,787 165,557 673,486
575,418 2,351,733 684,837 2,785,917
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25.

26.

27.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2022 2021
uUs$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Depreciation and amortisation
(Notes 10, 11 and 12) 408,674 1,670,251 418,181 1,701,160
License fees 132,319 540,788 127,510 518,711
Communication and data
maintenance 104,885 428,665 32,159 130,823
Foreign exchange loss 97,551 398,691 25,478 103,645
Other taxes 80,576 329,314 36,848 149,898
Legal and professional fees 64,385 263,141 70,056 284,988
Lease of low-value assets and
short-term rental (Note 12) 44,517 181,941 26,627 108,319
Repairs and maintenance 41,978 171,564 20,441 83,154
Utilities 39,525 161,539 36,961 150,357
Security 13,332 54,488 13,033 53,018
Insurance 9,787 39,999 6,358 25,864
Marketing and public relations 9,503 38,839 3,017 12,273
Travelling 8,728 35,671 5,288 21,512
Office supplies and stationaries 5,571 22,769 4,288 17,442
Other expenses 17,388 71,065 25,385 103,266

1,078,719 4,408,725

851,630 3,464,430

PROVISIONS FOR (REVERSAL OF) EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Loans and advances (Note 8) 716,850 2,929,766 284,407 1,156,968
Balances and placements with
other banks (Note 5 & 6) (263,143) (1,075,465) (1,401,148) (5,699,870)
Off-balance sheet items
(Note 27) (85,790) (350,624) 142,370 579,161

367,917 1,503,677

(974,371)  (3,963,741)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(8 Lending commitments

2022 2021
uUss$ KHR’000 US$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Unused portion of overdraft 7,062,155 28,863,027 12,034,789 48,957,522
Guarantees 2,863,270 11,702,184 1,753,162 7,131,863
Letters of credit 11,149,372 45,567,483 4,599,059 18,708,972
Total 21,074,797 86,132,694 18,387,010 74,798,357
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27.

28.

28.1

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(@)

(b)

Lending commitments (continued)

Movements of ECL for off-balance sheet commitments are as follows:

2022 2021
uUs$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
At 1 January 212,784 866,882 70,414 284,825
(Reversal of)/provision for
ECL (Note 26) (85,790) (350,624) 142,370 579,161
Exchange difference on
translation - 6,576 - 2,896

Tax contingency

The taxation system in Cambodia has undergone numerous changes and is
characterized by either often unclear, contradictory and/or differing interpretations
existing among numerous taxation authorities and jurisdictions. Taxes are subject to
review and investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to impose
severe fines, penalties and interest charges. These facts may create tax risks in
Cambodia substantially more significant than in other countries.

Management believes that it has adequately provided for tax liabilities based on its
interpretation of tax legislation. However, the relevant authorities may have differing
interpretations and the effects since the incorporation of the Branch could be significant.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Outstanding balances with related parties

2022 2021
uUss$ KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited (Head Office)
Current accounts with Head
Office 94,876 390,604 33,927 138,219
Subordinated debt from Head
Office (Note 16) 3,001,024 12,355,216 3,000,000 12,222,000
Capital contribution from
Head Office (Note 19) 50,000,000 200,000,000 50,000,000 200,000,000
Key management personnel
Savings accounts 3,977 16,254 30,700 125,072
Time deposits - - 73,674 300,148
3,977 16,254 104,374 425,220
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28.

28.2

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

Significant transactions with related parties

Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited (Head Office)

Interest expenses

Expenses paid on behalf by
Head Office

Key personnel management
Salaries
Benefits

2022 2021
uUs$ KHR’000 uUss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
195,412 798,649 58,107 236,379
- - 259,175 1,054,324
278,080 1,136,513 391,794 1,593,818
91,310 373,184 87,636 356,503
369,390 1,509,697 479,430 1,950,321
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29.

MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities as to whether they are expected to be recovered or settled within one year or beyond
one year from the statement of financial position date:

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - gross
Placements with NBC and

other banks - gross

Loans and advances to

customers - gross

Other assets

Non-financial assets
Statutory deposit
Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Software

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Allowance for ECLs
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation of non-financial assets

Total assets

KHR’000 (Note 2.3)

49

2022 2021
Within one year Beyond one year Total Within one year Beyond one year Total
uss uss uss Us$ uss Us$
30,763,656 - 30,763,656 52,618,860 - 52,618,860
2,018,772 - 2,018,772 7,088,128 - 7,088,128
22,594,196 29,479,897 52,074,093 18,626,460 15,752,848 34,379,308
108,166 - 108,166 111,347 - 111,347
55,484,790 29,479,897 84,964,687 78,444,795 15,752,848 94,197,643
- 13,683,204 13,683,204 - 13,683,491 13,683,491
- 1,111,134 1,111,134 - 1,095,110 1,095,110
- 1,196,445 1,196,445 - 959,987 959,987
- 405,943 405,943 - 405,943 405,943
- 284,865 284,865 - 343,600 343,600
48,889 - 48,889 164,289 - 164,289
48,889 16,681,591 16,730,480 164,289 16,488,131 16,652,420
(4,163,932) (3,710,225)
(2,064,884) (1,656,209)
95,466,351 105,483,629
393,034,966 429,740,304
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29.

30.

MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

2022 2021
Within one year Beyond one year Total Within one year Beyond one year Total
uUss$ uUs$ uUs$ UsS$ Us$ Us$
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 4,688,517 - 4,688,517 68,595 - 68,595
Deposits from other banks 34,664,357 2,229,366 36,893,723 47,034,150 1,367,243 48,401,393
Borrowings 997,023 - 997,023 5,008,863 - 5,008,863
Lease liabilities 357,814 - 357,814 215,338 - 215,338
Subordinated debt - 3,001,024 3,001,024 - 3,000,000 3,000,000
Other liabilities 49,382 49,382 99,482 - 99,482
40,757,093 5,230,390 45,987,483 52,426,428 4,367,243 56,793,671
Non-financial liabilities
Other liabilities 37,817 - 37,817 26,697 - 26,697
Provision for Provision for off-
balance sheet items - 126,994 126,994 - 212,784 212,784
Provision for employee benefits - - - 19,256 - 19,256
Current income tax liability 157,432 157,432 - -
195,249 126,994 322,243 45,953 212,784 258,737
Total liabilities 46,309,726 57,052,408
190,657,141 232,431,510

KHR’000 (Note 2.3)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Branch has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

e Operational risk
e Credit risk;
o Market risk;

e Liquidity risk.
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30.

30.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

This note presents information about the Branch’s exposure to each of the above risks and
the Branch’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Branch’s management of capital.

Risk management functional and governance structure

The Branch’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), and liquidity risk. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in
business.

The Branch does not use derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contract
and interest rate swaps to manage its risk exposure.

A primary objective of the Branch in risk management is to comply with NBC’s regulations.
On the other hand, the Branch has recognized the importance of achieving international best
practices on risk management. The Branch has established a Risk and Compliance
Management Meeting to formulate broad parameters of acceptable risk for the Branch and
monitor the activities against these parameters.

The details of financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

2022 2021
USs$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)

Financial assets
Cash on cash equivalents - gross 30,763,656 126,653,972 52,618,860 214,369,236
Placements with NBC and
other banks - gross 2,018,772 4,187,574 7,088,128 28,877,033
Loans and advances 52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
Other assets 108,166 445,319 111,347 453,628
Total financial assets 84,964,687 345,675,907 94,197,643 383,761,198
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
Deposits from other banks 4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456
Borrowings 997,023 4,104,744 5,008,863 20,406,108
Subordinated debt 3,001,024 12,355,216 3,000,000 12,222,000
Lease liabilities 357,814 1,473,120 215,338 877,287
Other liabilities 49,382 203,306 99,482 405,290
Total financial liabilities 45,987,483 189,330,468 56,793,671 231,377,416
Net financial assets 38,977,204 156,345,439 37,403,972 152,383,782

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from inadequate or failed internal
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements
and generally accepted standards of corporate behavior.

The operational risk loss is managed through established operational risk management
processes, proper monitoring and reporting of the business activities by control and support
units which are independent of the business units and oversight provided by the senior
management of the Branch.
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30.

30.1

30.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Operational risk (continued)

The Branch’s operational risk management entails the establishment of clear organizational
structures, roles and control policies. Various internal control policies and measures have
been implemented including the establishment of signing authorities, defining system
parameters controls, streamlining procedures and documentation and compliance with
regulatory and other legal requirements. These are continually reviewed to address the
operational risks of the business unit as well as to assess the level of compliance with the
Branch policies by a program of periodic reviews undertaken by the internal audit function.
The results of internal audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business unit
to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior
management of the Branch.

Credit risk

The Branch takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a
financial loss to the Branch by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk is the most
important risk for the Branch’s business. Credit exposure arises principally in lending activities
that lead to loans and advances. There is also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial
instruments, such as loan commitments. The lending activities are guided by the Branch’s
credit policy to ensure that the overall objectives in the area of lending are achieved,; i.e., that
the loan portfolio is strong and credit risks are well diversified. The credit policy documents
the lending policy, collateral policy and credit approval processes, including the Branch’s own
internal grading system, and procedures implemented to ensure compliance with NBC'’s
guidelines.

() Credit risk measurement

The Branch assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal
rating tool. Local credit committee is responsible for determining the risk rating policies.

Risk ratings are reviewed and updated regularly, and in events of (i) change of loan terms
and conditions including extension; (ii) repayment irregularities or delinquencies and (iii)
adverse information relating to the borrower or transaction.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Branch operates and provides loans and advances to individuals or enterprises within
the Kingdom of Cambodia. The Branch manages, limits and controls the concentration of
credit risk whenever it is identified. Large exposure is defined by NBC as overall credit
exposure to any individual beneficiary which exceeds 10% of the Branch’s net worth.

The Branch is required, under the conditions of NBC Prakas No. B7-06-226, to maintain
at all times a maximum ratio of 20% between the Branch’s overall credit exposure to any
single beneficiary and the Branch’s net worth. The aggregate of large credit exposure
must not exceed 300% of the Branch’s net worth.

For all large exposure loans exceeding 20% of net worth, the Branch has obtained the
pre-approval from NBC before granting the loans to customers. The Branch and its Head
Office closely monitor all large exposure loans to ensure that necessary actions are taken
on timely basis.

The Branch employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most
traditional of these is the taking of security in the form of collateral for loans and advances
to customers, which is common practice. The Branch implements guidelines on the
acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal
collateral types to secure for loans and advances to customers are:

e Mortgages over residential properties (land, building and other properties);
e Charges over business assets such as land and buildings; and
e Cash in the form of margin deposits.
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30.

30.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

()

(d)

()

Management of credit risk

e Developing and maintaining the Branch’s processes for measuring ECL: This
includes processes for:

- initial approval, regular validation and back-testing of the models used;
- determining and monitoring significant increase in credit risk; and
- incorporation of forward-looking information.

e Reviewing compliance of business units with agreed exposure limits, including those
for selected industries, country risk and product types. Regular reports on the credit
quality of local portfolios are provided to the Branch’s Credit Committee, which may
require appropriate corrective action to be taken. These include reports containing
estimates of ECL allowances.

¢ Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best
practice throughout the Branch in the management of credit risk.

The Branch employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most
traditional of these is the taking of security in the form of collateral for loans and
advances to customers, which is common practice. The Branch implements
guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation.
The principal collateral types to secure for loans and advances to customers are:

e Mortgages over residential properties (land, building and other properties);
e Charges over business assets such as land and buildings; and

e Cash in the form of margin deposits.

Concentration of risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Branch’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or
geographic location.

The Branch monitors concentration of credit risk of counterparty by industry. An analysis
of concentration of the credit risk as at the date of reporting period in the following tables.
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

Details of maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements are as follows:

2022 2021
uUss$ KHR’000 uss KHR’000
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
Balances with NBC 18,429,226 75,873,123 31,846,162 129,741,264
Balances with other banks 14,176,752 58,365,687 25,162,292 102,511,178
Loans and advances- gross 52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,532,292
Other assets 108,166 551,752 111,347 752,815
84,788,237 349,179,604 91,499,109 373,537,549

The credit exposure amounts arising from off balance sheet items are disclosed in Note
27 on Commitments and contingencies.
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30.

30.2

Credit risk (continued)

Financial intermediaries

Agriculture
Service

Manufacturing

Others

Allowance for ECLs

KHR’000 (Note 2.3)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

() Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

2022

Balances with

Balances with NBC other banks Loans and advances Others Total
US$ US$ US$ US$ Uss$
18,429,226 14,176,752 9,103,566 - 41,709,544
- - 6,001,133 - 6,001,133

- - 13,943,381 - 13,943,381

- - 23,026,013 - 23,026,013

- - - 108,166 108,166
18,429,226 14,176,752 52,074,093 108,166 84,788,237
- (49,247) (4,114,685) - (4,163,932)
18,429,226 14,127,505 47,959,408 108,166 80,624,305
75,873,123 58,162,937 197,448,883 445,319 331,930,262
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30.

30.2

Credit risk (continued)

Financial intermediaries

Agriculture
Service

Manufacturing
Import and export

Others

Allowance for ECLs

KHR’000 (Note 2.3)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f). Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

2021
Balances with

Balances with NBC other banks Loans and advances Others Total
US$ US$ US$ US$ Uss$
31,846,162 25,162,292 5,529,725 - 62,538,179
- - 1,600,120 - 1,600,120
- - 1,036,974 - 1,036,974
- - 26,127,149 - 26,127,149
- - 85,340 - 85,340
- - - 111,347 111,347
31,846,162 25,162,292 34,379,308 111,347 91,499,109
- (312,390) (3,397,835) - (3,710,225)
31,846,162 24,849,902 30,981,473 111,347 87,788,884
129,741,264 101,238,501 126,218,521 453,628 357,651,914
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30.

30.2

Credit risk (continued)

Balances with NBC
Balances with other banks
Loans and advances

Other assets

Allowance for ECLs

KHR'000 (Note 2.3)

Balances with NBC
Balances with other banks
Loans and advances

Other assets

Allowance for ECLs

KHR'000 (Note 2.3)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

() Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
uss uss uss Us$
18,429,226 - - 18,429,226
14,176,752 - - 14,176,752
44,553,180 4,544,820 2,976,093 52,074,093
108,166 - - 108,166
77,267,324 4,544,820 2,976,093 84,788,237
(925,121) (262,718) (2,976,093) (4,163,932)
76,342,203 4,282,102 - 80,624,305
314,300,848 17,629,414 - 331,930,262

2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
UsS$ Us$ Uss$ USs$
31,846,162 - - 31,846,162
25,162,292 - - 25,162,292
30,033,727 1,369,488 2,976,093 34,379,308
111,347 - - 111,347
87,153,528 1,369,488 2,976,093 91,499,109
(724,572) (9,560) (2,976,093) (3,710,225)
86,428,956 1,359,928 - 87,788,884
352,111,567 5,540,347 - 357,651,913

The Branch applies a three-stage approach based on the change in credit quality since

initial recognition.

Allowance for ECLs will be made based on the following three-stage approach which
reflects the change in credit quality of the financial instrument since initial recognition:

(i) Stage 1: 12-month ECL - not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not credit-impaired upon origination, the ECL
associated with the probability of default events occurring within next 12 months will

be recognized.

(i) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL will be recognized.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

30.2 Credit risk (continued)

(f) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit-impaired when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For financial assets that are credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL will be recognized.

Stage | Credit risk status Default indicator

1 12-month ECL - not credit- 0 to 14 DPD for short-term facilities
impaired 0 to 29 DPD for long-term facilities

2 Lifetime ECL - not credit- 15 to 30 DPD for short-term facilities
impaired 30 to 90 DPD for long-term facilities

3 Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired | More than 30 for short-term facilities

More than 90 DPD for long-term facilities
Restructured and rescheduled

Forced default

Related default

The definition of default used for these purposes shall be applied consistently to all
financial assets unless information becomes available that demonstrates that another
default definition is more appropriate for a particular financial instrument.

Based on the Branch’s definition of default, an account classified as default will be
automatically tagged as “Yes” in the “Impairment Indicator” field when the “Default-
Reason” field shows one of the four default reasons below:

(&) Normal Turn: The account’s delinquency exceeds 30 DPD and is applicable to
all products except trade finance product which has a definition of default of 15
DPD due to the short-term nature of the product.

(b) R&R: When the account undergoes debt restructuring or rescheduling;

(c) Forced: When account shows deterioration in its credit profile, but its
delinquency does not exceed 30 DPD; and

(d) Related: Refers to cross default by obligor(s) of the same borrower type within
the same loan listing source.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Branch incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of
whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and the measurement of ECL.

External information considered includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the countries where the Branch
operates, supranational organizations such as the International Monetary Fund, and
selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

The Branch has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses
for each portfolio of financial instruments in accordance with each country and, using
an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic
variables and credit risk and credit losses.

(g) Repossessed collateral

During the year, the Branch did not repossess any collateral held as security.
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30.

30.3

30.4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk

The Branch takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk arises from open positions in interest rates, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of
market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and
equity prices.

The Branch does not use derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contract
and interest rate swaps to hedge its risk exposure.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognized assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Branch’s functional currency. The
Branch maintains a policy of not exposing itself to large foreign exchange positions. Any
foreign currency exchange open positions are monitored against the operating
requirements, pre-determined position limits and cut-loss limits.

As at 31 December 2022, balances in monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than US$ are not significant. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis for foreign
currency exchange risk was presented.

(i) Price risk

The Branch is not exposed to price risk of securities because it does not hold any
investments classified in the statement of financial position as marketable securities.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Interest margins may increase as a result of
changes and may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The
management of the Branch at this stage have a policy to set limits on the level of
mismatch of interest rate re-pricing that may be undertaken; which regularly monitors the
mismatch by the management and head office.

The Branch has no significant financial assets and liabilities with floating interest rates.
Balances with NBC, balances with other banks, and loans and advances earn fixed
interest rates and deposits from other banks and customers have fixed interest rates.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Branch is unable to meet its payment obligations associated
with its financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn.
The consequence of this may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill
commitments to lend.

Management monitors the financial position liquidity and manages the concentration and
profile of debt maturities. Monitoring and reporting take the form of the daily cash position and
projection for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity
management. Management monitors the movements of the main depositors and projection
of their withdrawals.

The table in Note 28 is an analysis of the assets and liabilities of the Branch by relevant

maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual or
estimated maturity dates.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

30.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

a.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Branch did not have financial instruments measured at fair value.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

As at the balance sheet date, the fair values of financial instruments of the Branch
approximate their carrying amounts.The estimated fair values are based on the following
methodologies and assumptions:

Cash and cash equivalents and placements with the NBC and other bank

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, placements with the NBC and
other banks approximate their fair values, since these accounts consist mostly of
current, and short-term deposits.

Loans and advances

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of less than one year, the
carrying amounts are generally reasonable estimates of their fair values.

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of one year and above, fair
values are estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows using a current
lending rate as the prevailing market rates of loans with similar credit risks and
maturities have been assessed as insignificantly different to the contractual lending
rates. As a result, the fair value of non-current loan and advances to customers
approximates their carrying value at reporting date.

Deposits from customers and deposits from other banks

The fair values of deposits from customers and deposits from other banks
approximate their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of deposits with no
stated maturities, which include non-interest earning deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand.

Deposits with fixed interest are not quoted in the active market and are short-term.
Their fair value approximates the carrying amount.
Borrowing and subordinated debt

The carrying amounts of borrowing and subordinated debt approximate to their fair
values as borrowing is at short-term of 6 months and the subordinated debt is at
floating interest rate

Other financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities are assumed to
approximate their fair values due to most of these assets and liabilities are not
materially sensitive to the shift in market interest rates.
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30.

30.6

31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the capital management are to ensure that it complies with
externally imposed capital requirements and it maintains strong financial position and healthy
capital ratios to support its business and to maximize shareholder’s value.

The Branch manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Branch may adjust the amount of dividend payment to Head
Office, return capital structure, or issue capital securities. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies and processes from previous years.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Financial assets

Analysis of financial assets into maturity groupings is based on the expected date on which
these assets will be realized. For other assets, the analysis into maturity grouping is based
on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date
or if earlier the expected date the assets will be realized.

Financial liabilities

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period

to the contractual maturity date. When counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid,
the liability is allocated to the earliest period in which the Branch can be required to pay.
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31.

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash on hand
Balances with NBC
Balances with other banks

Placement with NBC and

other bank

Loans and advances

Other assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers
Deposits from other banks

Borrowings

Subordinated debt
Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities
Net liquidity surplus (gap)
KHR’000 (Note 2.3)

2022

On demand and

up to 1 month >1-3 months >3-6 months >6-12 months >1to5years  Over5years Total
US$ US$ Us$ UsSs$ Uss$ US$ USs$
176,450 - - - - - 176,450
15,592,084 1,820,000 - - - - 17,412,084
4,845,091 8,330,031 - - - 13,175,122
- 1,017,142 1,001,630 - - - 2,018,772

8,164,050 6,896,359 7,556,423 141,297 8,457,406 20,858,558 52,074,093
108,166 - - - - - 108,166
28,885,841 18,063,532 8,558,053 141,297 8,457,406 20,858,558 84,964,687
28,997,873 1,515,446 2,280,687 1,870,351 2,229,366 - 36,893,723
1,773,774 971,581 971,581 971,581 - - 4,688,517

- 997,023 - - - - 997,023

- - - - 3,001,024 - 3,001,024

- 357,814 - - - - 357,814

49,382 - - - - - 49,382
30,821,029 3,841,864 3,252,268 2,841,932 5,230,390 - 45,987,483
(1,935,188) 14,221,668 5,305,785 (2,700,635) 3,227,016 20,858,558 38,977,204
(7,967,170) 58,550,607 21,843,917  (11,118,514) 13,285,625 85,874,683 160,469,148

(*) Deposits from Head Office have original maturity terms from 3 to 24 months and subject to renewal to ensure that the Branch remains liquid.
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31.

32.

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash on hand
Balances with NBC
Balances with other banks

Placement with NBC and

other bank

Loans and advances

Other assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers
Deposits from other banks

Borrowings

Subordinated debt
Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities
Net liquidity surplus (gap)
KHR’000 (Note 2.3)

2021

On demand and

up to 1 month >1-3 months >3-6 months >6-12 months >1to5years  Over5 years Total
uUs$ US$ Us$ Us$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$
2,698,534 - - - - - 2,698,534
24,758,034 - - - - - 24,758,034
17,162,292 8,000,000 - - - - 25,162,292
7,088,128 7,088,128
5,193,304 6,124,277 7,273,072 151,416 5,215,042 10,422,197 34,379,308
111,347 - - - - - 111,347
57,011,639 14,124,277 7,273,072 151,416 5,215,042 10,422,197 94,197,643
39,159,169 3,051,882 3,297,497 1,525,602 1,367,243 - 48,401,393
68,595 - - - - - 68,595
5,008,863 - - - - - 5,008,863
- - - - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

- - 215,338 - - - 215,338

99,482 - - - - - 99,482
44,336,109 3,051,882 3,512,835 1,525,602 4,367,243 - 56,793,671
12,675,530 11,072,395 3,760,237 (1,374,186) 847,799 10,422,197 37,403,972
51,640,109 45,108,937 15,319,206 (5,598,434) 3,453,933 42,460,031 152,383,782

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, at the date of this report, there were no events which occurred subsequent to 31
December 2022 that had significant impact on the Branch’s financial position as at 31 December 2022 and its financial performance for the year then

ended.
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(iii) §U RS
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5. RNTITIT LOTRTITIRROBLRS
PNGIMA SRANGUIMAIEYIJEESS
2022 2021
FRNIEIETR mERIU GRS ms v
(RANARIEIT (AANARIEIT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
anGmAnai 176,450 726,445 2,698,534 10,993,828
ﬁjiﬁﬁﬂjljtfﬂiﬁtijﬁm“‘limﬁ sAgm
anndoig Shananfgnn 5,075,091 20,894,153 3,757,949 15,309,885
HmusSEMATID IR UMGEIo
M8 ("NCDs") 12,336,993 50,791,400 21,000,085 85,554,346
AUHA N INYW{A AN SUIIMIRINhY
aAnfoig ShannSimAvIg 4,840,945 19,930,169 2,280,238 9,289,690
[MATIRMSMuUAANG 8,330,031 34,294,736 22,880,859 93,216,619
AUBY AN GIM AN IG5 4,146 17,069 1,195 4,868
ANGIMA 8By uANGMAID
INWMIAN AU AN G M 30,763,656 126,653,972 52,618,860 214,369,236
Bre afimenSINGECL (4,280) (17,621) (312,390) (1,272,677)
30,759,376 126,636,351 52,306,470 213,096,559

ANGIMA SABYUANGIMA- AJE

NCDs tyts NBC Si{mAvifimumuAnnimywiniminjuig)amsmuiang
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ﬁJLmUmiUJUEIGQUmU G312 512022
IN) & J 43 a
5. mﬁi@ﬁ ﬁ@&ﬂﬁi@ﬁ&ﬁb’gm (% ﬁ:ITS)
ﬁﬂELmn Siﬁfd&iﬁﬂjﬁﬂGLmﬁuﬂj MBINPEn JUWUANGGNIMYS
2022 2021
FRNIEIGTA M8 FIEIGIR men
(AANG T (AANATEIT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
(Mg A sia 30,566,646 125,842,882 50,958,014 207,602,949
imfiruigs 193,925 798,389 1,104,129 4,498,222
{mamaig 2,877 11,845 556,536 2,267,328
eftgy 208 856 181 737
30,763,656 126,653,972 52,618,860 214,369,236
UHBUEUATMSESIN ECLNS G ONI{MY3
2022 2021
FRNIENIGTA msRi GG mE R
(AANAATEIIL (AANAATEIIL
g 2.3) g 2.3)
[MAREELRD 312,390 1,272,677 1,713,538 6,931,261
minagmupmasisaiime s i
ECLs (AANAATEIN 26) (308,110) (1,259,246) (1,401,148) (5,699,870)
m[yg‘j‘]aﬁ[ﬁj YIgma - 4,190 - 41,286
tydst fag 4,280 17,621 312,390 1,272,677
HIMMIIMA (GRYWEY) N85 ENNIMY3
2022 2021
annfoig Shann8gnathys NBC ms msl
NCDs thijtis NBC 0.50% - 3.42%  0.02% - 0.14%
AANSoig ShannSmAvI SNy WESI Mg 0.2% 0.2%
[MAUIRT S MUANNA Y W E NN 5.30%  0.38%2.25%
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2022 2021
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(AANAAIEIT (AANAATEIT
g 2.3) e 2.3)
NCD thijtis NBC (i) 1,017,142 4,187,574 7,088,128 28,877,033
[MAUIRMSMUAANAMYWE M
D f (i) 1,001,630 4,123,710
ifz AiimsnsIiMinAUARANAS
thuifngn (Aandagmn 26) (44,967) (185,129)
Iydat teg 1,973,805 8,126,155 7,088,128 28,877,033

() slgng aneamsinA NCD thyw NBC G§81,150,0008 NiHIEIA thigum
ﬁjUiIWﬁLUﬁUﬁmiEiﬂ'jf:rquﬁﬁﬂﬁLmﬁ (LPCO")  (AANGATHIIUE 150
NCD nemMuAANAItsIN 6l MywshHmmMimAnUi 2.34% gig
(20212 7,083,000 & ANIHIHIA IS M AUAANRIW TN 3.512 9§mmsm:Lm'ﬁmfj
i 0.50% 191 2.25% QR UIF)

(i) {mAvTINEsMuAnnamygwanssTimiamImsmuinng 18 §hsgu
M SH{MMI{MA 3.50% qhgtﬁgﬁ"} '

IERHBERMBERS
2022 2021

GG MR GRS msnjw
(AANGATEIT (AANGRIEIT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
[MARYUUERMANAG 8,683,204 35,748,751 8,683,491 35,376,542
Lmﬁﬁgnjmmm}'[ﬁﬁgs 5,000,000 20,585,000 5,000,000 20,370,000
13683204 56,333,751 13,683,491 55746542

[MARGRTUIEAMAYAG
INRNMEUM IV MIAISAYM [ye B7-020-230 G:ig§18 f2ds §12020
GIMIMANFAITANESUBRAMGIMAYWESSywEnmith IsAythahepam
[MAVIAMANE INWAMNSIARHM 7% S{MAUIQIUsHASES Suadthima

MAaYAGESGGUMSMITMAIE

45



SN NOHH ssssnssagszsgazsﬁameﬁiéﬁ OB

ﬁma&smmsmsm@smsmsﬂsmsa (ANgAIYS)

mLmUmimm[ggung m;§931 f2n 512022

a a
P

messmmassjss ﬁ:fS)

Lmﬁﬁgm}mmm‘f'fﬁyfs

o

INRMBUMEsiues NBC 138 B7-01-136 G:ig§15 f2gnn §12001 GRVMIAIIAN
[MmArEIMSUMGIiugs 638 10% Istivgsiiumsgumtyty NBC me':“mcmﬁ
IgsEsms i udimasgnwdvimipsligivesanens  gigmonaimmssi
mmfﬁmmmnﬁﬁt"]mﬁ:ﬁ'w:mﬁfﬁg@;hmmﬁjﬁgm:mmmL 8571 (MAREIMS

IOIREES §GRUMSMIMA 1.19% GRYWE (20212 0.04% ANYWF) T

SRl
q

BROML SSVHPNS

HANAS SHUNUA STV N WS G ARI|MYS

2022 2021

ganiaein m8WI GG mejn

(AANARIEIT (AANARIEIT

g 23) g 2.3)

Nwopssnty 1,791,270 7,374,659 3,743,430 15,250,734

fsanesimyus 241,297 993,420 271,196 1,104,853

nnAsiwinng 20,715,232 85,284,610 14,608,924 59,516,756

RNgISity: i 29,412,587 121,091,621 15,827,448 64,481,023

52,160,386 214,744,310 34,450,998 140,353,366

mMIMATRITHUg gru 77,640 319,644 43,919 178,926

AlgIunE 52,238,026 215,063,954 34,494,917 140,532,292

igdmnimipmAngiiudsnims

§ AN (163,933) (674,912) (115,609) (470,991)

algruni 52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
simsusiiminauisnnasiin

ifnen (4,114,685)  (16,940,159) (3,397,835)  (13,842,780)

snnsie 81 YH{URNS—TUg 47,959,408 197,448,883 30,981,473 126,218,521

1 1
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8. grame feseisame (nlifiiys)
vlipuiprutsigndimensiiminauisnnasiduiingn IGRAN IS 8Ny
[TASHSHEANIMY:

2022 2021
g My GaniEIGia me s
(AANG T (AANG T
g 2.3) g 2.3)
sigd1 tsunn 3,397,835 13,842,780 3,113,428 12,593,816
RSTMSESANG) (AANAEINIINE 26) 716,850 2,929,766 284,407 1,156,968
rutg|afugmyigma - 167,613 91,996
ailedst e 4,114,685 16,940,159 3,397,835 13,842,780

miglamatsmiprigimnsgsEnimaguissansis Shynpans faaimens
IURIN NG ECLs mudinmamuimusnnas Saununsiduniinmuniy

invesmsgoanmus

dnmam €l damam§2  damams§s AT

FRNEUETA  GUEIETA  GEIETE e

iy §1 feuan gi2022 412,182 9,560 2,976,093 3,397,835
gnjrunyd 924,874 8,676 933,550
mignnsnignjronylin
UG ¢ UAN (210,482) (6,218) (216,700)
el Samamod 1
il Snmamud 2 (250,700) 250,700
e damamué 3
siig3tieny §i2022 875,874 262,718 2,976,093 4,114,685
MEHN (Fandagmnine 2.3) 3,605,973 1,081,610 12,252,576 16,940,159
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i §12022
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a

grame feseisame (nlifiiys)

y e

g &1 fsvAn §12021

I
o

LFagrunyy
migansnignjrunytin
UG GRS
minstirgiuimsinfimsns
Grmemigui

il Samamaud 1

il Snmamud 2

g damamé 3

siig3tisy gizo21

M8 (Aandamaine 2.3)

mitmavigsisalgiund idgnne s 81 YA SMSHEOnmuy:

() Mulafw gy

(iy merdwonn

[MAL AR
inhitihtieh

(i) MYMH

damamw$r  damam§ze  dnmams§3 AT
FOIRNGIA  GRTEIETA GREIGTA  GNRIETA
63,821 73,514 2,976,093 3,113,428
394,386 5,450 - 399,836
(45,504) (33,320) - (78,824)
(521) (36,084) - (36,605)
412,182 9,560 2,976,093 3,397,835
1,679,229 38,947 12,124,604 13,842,780
2022 2021

ganiaein mEWI G mejn
(AANARTEIT (AANARIEIT

g 2.3) g 2.3)

9,103,566 37,479,381 5,529,725 22,528,100
6,001,133 24,706,665 1,600,120 6,518,889
13,943,381 57,404,900 1,036,974 4,224,632
23,026,013 94,798,096 26,127,149 106,442,005

- - 85,340 347,675

52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301

2022 2021

FRNIEIETR mERIU GG ms v
(RANFRI T (RAN&drI T

g 2.3) g 2.3)

45,278,359 186,411,004 30,549,707 124,459,506
6,795,734 27,978,038 3,829,601 15,601,795
52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301

an
RIS AANF U NSNS 31 MAMAMURANAIGEAN A8 U SRYR{TAS T
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(iv) mugnasmn wggans §avmsat

2022 2021
FRNIEIGTA M GaiEIGia mens
(AANG T (AANE T
g 2.3) e 2.3)
Sneusmn
8nsusns 52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
Lk
mAaSsmAfs 52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
iAW
AW 24,855,173 102,328,747 13,426,765 54,700,641
fstustmiAws 27,218920 112,060,295 20,952,543 85,360,660
52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
ayttdruinnaeun e 30.2 sntmitmaum A w RAnNes Shulufe-
(Vi) iRt il (staging) Isinng s
2022 2021
ganinsin meuv GG mejn
(AANARIEIT (ARNGRIEIT
e 23) e 23)
dnmam§ 1 44,553,180 183,425,443 30,033,727 122,357,404
damamué 2 4,544,820 18,711,024 1,369,488 5,579,294
Samameué 3 2,976,093 12,252,575 2,976,093 12,124,603
52,074,093 214,389,042 34,379,308 140,061,301
) AFHMAINT (FAYWE)
2022 2021
ifwipesaty 6.875% 7.25%
fanAsinyus 5.5% - 9% 7.5% - 9%
RAn@ISitnug 4% - 9.71% 2.7% - 6%

BN St In et 5.47% - 8.53%
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2022 2021
FRNIEIGTA M ganiEIGia me s
(AANAAIEIT (AANAATEIT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
108,166 445,319 111,347 453,628
23,037 94,843 90,851 370,127
25,852 106,433 73,438 299,187
157,055 646,595 275,636 1,122,942

50



SRS NOHH BINTORZVSH|FSMNH|BE aNNHH?

1 [ o

HROSESINBEBINESFURNBIMSE (7§ Aiys)

—1 [oc s ] >
o o o

i tmisuTigeumy igdst ey gizo22

2

IN) &

a

10. 26y Kesim

=2

lata AT
st 8i iafiagmi
MR AN G UimARnSign §auvim UNSg ATTU
FONIRIGTR FRNIFIGIT FONIHIGTR FRNIHIGIT FRNIFIGIT menjv
(AANAAIEIT
e 2.3)
nlyrily
g1 fsunn gi2022 661,569 339,190 93,241 1,110 1,095,110 4,461,478
miGmuigy - 4,524 11,499 - 16,023 65,486
uIglREEmgIma - - - - - 47,571
siigaiien gi2022 661,569 343,714 104,740 1,110 1,111,133 4,574,535
HATIATURI
¢ faunn gi2022 462,645 275,189 88,310 1,110 827,254 3,370,233
truesrsigng 66,103 55,495 2,431 - 124,029 506,907
urglREEmgIma - - - - - 39,293
siig3tisy §i2022 528,748 330,684 90,741 1,110 951,283 3,916,433
sl rge iest ten 532022 132,821 13,030 13,999 - 159,850 658,102
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i1 fsunn gizo21
frursrsighngd
urglREEmgIma

sigstien gi2021

)

& (ah¢hiys)
712022

nals Ny

mitATgE A st 8i ipliagmi AN g

g uipiasemsign Savim LSS AN At AU
FONIRIGTR FRNIFIGIT FONIRIGTR FRNIEIGIT FRNIEIGIT FRNIFIGTT ms v
(ARNARIEIT
g 2.3)
661,569 306,132 92,343 1,110 12,364 1,073,518 4,342,380
- 20,694 898 - - 21,592 87,836
- 12,364 - - (12,364) - -
- - - - - - 31,262
661,569 339,190 93,241 1,110 - 1,095,110 4,461,478
396,542 210,258 86,983 1,110 - 694,893 2,810,842
66,103 64,931 1,327 - - 132,361 538,445
- - - - - - 20,946
462,645 275,189 88,310 1,110 - 827,254 3,370,233
198,924 64,001 4,931 - - 267,856 1,091,245
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1

2

[}

IN) &

a

1REYESTIBseEE s

v

nlyrily
g &1 f2unn §i2022
RUrgREEm I

siiystie §i2022

trupiugi
g1 feunn gi2022
frurssighngd

urglREEm I
silgstien gi2022
alguniegg

siiystie §i2022

Mg
gl REEmgImA
iy31ieq gi2o21
frusiugi

g1 feunn gizo021
fursisigngl
uIg|REmyIma

iy3iieq gi2021

BERBITRBESTNIRRN

& (aNgniys)
3 1
I3 512022
(=1
RGIGRATST

FRNIEIGTA ms

(AANAATEIT

e 2.3)

405,943 1,653,812

- 17,455

405,943 1,671,267

96,753 394,172

82,962 339,066

- 6,648

179,715 739,886

226,228 931,381

RGIGHISImY
RGTGR TSI miEArgf AT

ganinsin GONIHIGIA  GRNIEIETE mejn
(AANGRIEIT

e 2.3)

33,940 231,064 265,004 1,071,941
140,939 - 140,939 573,340
231,064 (231,064) - )

- - - 8,531

405,943 - 405,943 1,653,812
18,252 - 18,252 73,829
78,501 - 78,501 319,342

- - - 1,001

96,753 - 96,753 394,172
309,190 - 309,190 1,259,640
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a a
P

12. sH&E8seR

ANSIFHSIGINARA.

a

PN MSGAGUSPY UMW unsti:

n

NAUEIEMIWN S WIvaIgs T

P HSIAMIUATUNMIG G VAN "MIGULE NjEjRATENU Samiguiw:n
S N UMIG LN SIS SURIANMIUN AW SRMIG TN gIgjig)a

SNIMBIS AN UHBUE U IS§ O AIAEARMING M AT G § A UmMIg uHm

miunwivesane fndgsFaimaiunaisdanumuafigns

o

AT GESMIIITIMATIF A AUAE

2

2022 2021
FRNIEIETR mERIU GG menjw
(AAn&ar (AANARIEIT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
nigrdly

g1 feunn 959,987 3,910,987 888,202 3,592,777
mivlgy (MIVEguIw: 1Nt n) 236,458 966,404 71,785 292,021
UIgRHMYImA - 48,373 26,189
silgést ien 1,196,445 4,925,764 959,087 3,910,987

HATUATURI
i1 fsunn 732,202 2,982,991 524,883 2,123,152
fusiang 201,683 824,278 207,319 843,374
Ul REEmgImA - 37,535 16,465
nigést feg 933,885 3,844,804 732,202 2,982,991
aturmnase i dat fon 262,560 1,080,960 227,785 927,996

~ 10 o 5
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HROS ARG EBITNUBFURNNIERSH (" iys)

2

[} o
9
PUEIUMIWIuIIG e u M Sﬁg 31 ESQ {2022
a a o o
12,  ®&SRP (AN$NiYS)
ganwasogn
2022 2021

FRNIEIGTA M8 FRIEIGIR men
(AANAAIEIT (AAN&arTE
g 2.3) g 2.3)
g1 feunn 215,338 877,287 348,740 1,410,653
mivigy 236,458 966,404 71,785 292,021
mivRiismigma 9,307 38,038 12,253 49,845
migAn (103,289) (422,142) (217,440) (884,546)
uIglREEmgIma - 13,533 - 9,314
sitgdst feg 357,814 1,473,120 215,338 877,287

midmamuuinns- GuinGima

fhruSstsmiveaiymufgeign
AGthi 151 361,305 1,487,493 217,440 884,546
iSsthinigl Giginohi 557 - - - -

gsmsmiuqeatginnuaisagn

T ' 361,305 1,487,493 217,440 884,546

SgsdamAlduEimSsguANISIgNIMWMINNUGEUINMIMES  §G811

TEE
2022 2021
FRNIEIETR MERIU  GANIEIGIR ms v
(RANARIEIT (AANARIET
g 2.3) g 2.3)
truesed gnimesignjuny 201,683 824,278 207,319 843,374
MM ARG S anuaRausy
(RANARIIIIVE 22) 9,307 38,038 12,253 49,845
GAMWAINUMIGU{FNjUAY
WU Z8NMIGU{ENjAURYES
fﬁfgmﬁ (ﬁ“’mﬁﬁjyn}/mg 25) 44,517 181,941 26,627 108,319
Ggseuiuliniggruan g
MIAN GBI IN N IUMm 255,507 1,044,257 246,199 1,001,538
l -~ -~
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13.

) o e ae
IRHBERAHESS
imhAvtisASnsjumns
AnN8GIg
[MAUI A8
mAvmsmuAnng
imavidisadsnspimsima

() MEUIEFIoWwonn

A G IRIEIA
i utg
[MAMALS

(i) MEAVAANG

2022 2021
FRNIEIGTA My GaiEIGia mens
(AANG T (AANE AT
g 2.3) g 23)
3,448,216 14,196,305 5,564,815 22,671,056
24,496,236 100,851,004 33,171,581 135,141,021
8,949,271 36,844,149 9,664,997 39,375,198
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
REABINEE
2022 2021
ganiasin m8WI GG mejn
(AANARIEIT (AANARIEIT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
36,643,510 150,861,331 48,069,091 195,833,477
234,188 964,152 108,554 442,249
16,025 65,975 223,748 911,549
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275

ayurduinnaesn e 31 s umamamuianarsimavifiaicns
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U [

HROS ARG EBITNUBFURNNIERSH (" iys)

[}

2

o

i tmiwuTigeumy nig§st ey gizo22

IN) & a a
P

13. EnfsRAssScs (nhédiys)

(i) MEJIIFFHBENS SNATSMA SHG817 G812

2022 2021
ganiEIG; mels  gapiEIet me e
(AANGATPIE (AANGTEIS
g 2.3) Mg 2.3)
[UIRSHEDNS#
UG 19,445,141 80,055,646 15,614,168 63,612,120
anfingangun 17,448,582 71,835,812 32,787,225 133,575,155
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
mySnaIsmng
§nausnis 36,137,541 148,778,256 46,222,184 188,309,178
L DPRETS 756,182 3,113,202 2,179,209 8,878,097
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
mu§gsIAgsh:
mASsmAng 36,835,902 151,653,409 48,297,019 196,762,055
mAmAig 57,821 238,049 104,374 425,220
36,893,723 151,891,458 48,401,393 197,187,275
(iv) &A1 (gﬁgwgv
2022 2021
AANSGIS s s
[mAuras] 0% - 0.5% 0.5% - 1.00%
[mAvIRnsmMuAnNG 0.75% - 4.50% 1.00% - 5.00%
k) o e ﬁ
14, {ERIRBEHRABNT/EERIS)
2022 2021
GG MR GRS msnjv
(AANAATEIT (AANAAIEIT
g 23) e 2.3)
AANSGig 68,756 283,068 68,595 279,456
{MAUINENSMUANNY 4,619,761 19,019,556 - -
4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456
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14,

15.

a a
P

) o e 4 a
rasuhtandediugsgigien (nléiiys)

a

mitmavigsiSimaviNisdSnsmsgoangmus:

() MEIEFIoWwonn

2022 2021
GG meRlu  gnimnieia ms

(AANG T (AANE AT

g 2.3) e 2.3)

[MAGIEIEA 67,765 278,989 67,594 275,378
i utg 4,620,752 19,023,635 1,001 4,078
4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456

(i) momwma
ayttdruinnaeunniiue 31 mamamwmitsMAUIN A anTsiiminmjig 3

(i) MeSNrsmn §4 817 ¢844

2022 2021
FanIHIG} m8KJr GG meilr
(AANFRIEF (AANARIENF
g 2.3) g 2.3)
MESNaISAINg
Snassns 4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456
mu¢sIAgsiz
meSsmacs 4,688,517 19,302,624 68,595 279,456
(i) MERIMAIINA (FHH W)
2022 2021
AANSGIg ms ;s
[mAvIRMsmMuiang 3.33% - 6.30% ms

TREHE
[mArganmagjmiimammaluinimiths  Isaymhanepd  Iswivims
FRUi U (LPCO”) f ru1SNCD th{$NjUM (AANARTEIUINE 6) imsm btk

(MARTFBIS i SMUARNAI: NS 3 12 SRH{MMIIMA 5.30% (2021: 3.00%) At
y

58



SRS NOHH BINCORZVSH|FSMNH|BE aNNHH?

HROS ARG EBITNUBFURNNIERSH (" iys)

i tmiwuTigeumy nig§st ey gizo22

15.

16.

a a
P

o a o o

TREHE (¢ Aiys)

Ly

UlBUEUIS{MARGH S HENIMYS

2022 2021
Rty mei  HaNiEIEiA men
(AANATEIT (AANATEIT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
S1El§§1 feunn 5,008,863 20,406,108 447,986 1,812,103
ﬁ"liUfﬁH 1,468,069 5,999,998 8,933,220 36,340,339
migNHIGMANS (5,479,909)  (22,396,388) (4,372,343)  (17,786,691)
uig|Ramyima - 95,026 - 40,357
sigdst feg 997,023 4,104,744 5,008,863 20,406,108
HRBRNRS
gtnnrummidimaiwnuimidudsnsmimimiun Swanmu thiywii
Ggsénmatinslunifn{fvigdst e 2022 6§8 3,001,024innisisia (1Y
§31 T2 §12021¢ 3,000,0008 AniHIETA) rhwigaGAgnsn)instigdes teagm
§12018 Shugagjinn:islig§es i2Gg s gi2021 thywshugenngsanmys
o UTMIRANAISHIIY: 3,000,000 & AUTHIIGIA
o HIWMIU: 75 mUAigEs1 feanin gl2o18 wriigéso iedum
§12025
[=3
o (MmAtdu{piun: MR AUEIEIGSS 5 Gt Imethyw S 600,000
ganiEEia aRwAIthywinmingpinumisi
[MAgEORImys

- aunpmAiuGn 2 isiig§3o s By 512025
- eonmmfiviinaés islig#so fsBy s gizo2e
- unpmAiuGn 4 1siig§so fsdym 512027
- aunmAieIGn s sty §3o s By 512028
o MIGgHHMIMA: el fm asigadmigsd v M nfwn nm e

o H{MMI{MA: LIBOR {2 + 1.50%

istig§s feaium §i2018 enenms g grumitns{ns i NBC firusgm
danmunGisian Rimt§2 wipmudanaismianniyu

an] ]
=

;co hat}
-
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17.

17.1

a a
P

ASEBINHEERANS

> o

MAISEAMWN I {MAGAN TS HENRIMY:

2022 2021

ganiIsin MBI GRS men
(AANATHI (AANATHI
g 2.3) g 2.3)

ngAR{m 191,045 780,801
ngnsnI 58,735 240,050 190,701 775,772
249,780 1,020,851 190,701 775,772

ngIGIMAGANAIFAIM

pdmsugaismiamuwidngIGMAGANugH TS AN S HE nNImY:

2022 2021

FRNIEIETR mERIU  FRNHIGTA ms v

(ARNARIEIT (ARNARTEIT

g 2.3) g 2.3)

Sinnmysuingiimasanu 975,184 3,985,576 601,324 2,446,186
GAMWA§MEH{MANNE 20% 195,037 797,116 120,265 489,238
GAMWBSMEMARNMS 54,743 223,735 70,436 286,534
249,780 1,020,851 190,701 775,772

NgIMAGIANMES{HIAIgMA

IMNNMBUSUMANSAYth ngidimasanughmpinsannsusiaagaimi
isimAsanuthtngestgiganShu{mng 20% Isimuuviigenwminn 8§ 1%

8GN
9 > al i o 0'_, - ' o °
U[LHULEiﬂJ[S ASIRUIMAGANMIQD ﬂngfUiijLijiﬁ[Lﬁﬁﬁs
2022 2021
GRS MR GG msnjw
(AANAATEIU (AAN&ERTENT
g 2.3) e 2.3)
g1 tgunn
SamuwngiSmAasanu 191,045 780,801
Mg ARUNFAMIWUTIGE (33,613) (137,376)
rUrglREEm I 4,723
157,432 648,148 - -
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17.

17.2

18.

REEBIENHBRANS (1 $A1Ys)

AANITNIF N IAY

ngngnith{gnjruAyiiuBsms ¢ gruaNimsSHuanimys

NgNSNIh{ERjauRY

ECLs 00 {§ njeuayuiim
igdmnimipmangiin
ASMS GG AN
Ganuads
amuGNUNSIHURINS
ndglye ’

ngngnpithdnnms
3 gIsmindmasignjauny
tnues td{gn] Shaunnn
Suignjrbw

NSNSNItN{FNjRIRY-I§

ulupisngnspithignja

Gy §1 teunn
GAMWASNUMIWUIG ¢
Ul REEmgImA

s1igé31 isg
v Ej

BRNRES5S)

2022 2021
GG meRIU GRS ms v
(AANG T (AANE AT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
262,966 1,082,631 189,383 771,546
32,787 134,984 23,122 94,199
71,563 294,625 43,068 175,459
139,738 569,292
367,316 1,512,240 395,311 1,610,496
(52,512) (216,192) (45,557) (185,599)
(29,939) (123,260) (6,154) (25,071)
(82,451) (339,452) (51,711) (210,670)
284,865 1,172,788 343,600 1,399,826
Ag— AUGHISHGNIMYE
=3 1P v
2022 2021
FRNIEIETR mERIU GRS ms v
(AANARTEIT (AANARIEIT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
343,600 1,399,826 534,301 2,161,248
(58,735) (240,050) (190,701) (775,772)
13,012 14,350
284,865 1,172,788 343,600 1,399,826

Ganumjirg)annaenSamisamwigivimivy Shdanruimjhaig)a
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19.

20.

21.

a a
P

) a [

MIB LIS BRRIB MU EBHRTING

I8¢ TR U AN WML B WHAM s S§ENRImys

2022 2021
ganiIsin M8 FRIEIGIR men
(AANATHI (AANATHI
g 2.3) g 2.3)
50,000,000 200,000,000 50,000,000 200,000,000

GU IGMEPW SRgARINMIUM

al a

iIslig§22 fed s §12016 GRIMITNAISAYTNMSIGM{UM IS G7-016-117 ajfiifly
gsusuMuyjuitis{cansammi  Shulimig  fduapiej o aitumiun niw

o

ANMURinshwalyt "samamhatismialina" ihwimpammnwaty nsids
qsq:ijcﬁﬁqjmmﬁgs 200 ME AN SIS (TR 50N S AN T

ML MGWALML (TMT MNAA BUNNS§FUSN{RINSAEA ana1ayt) 9s
énmﬁghﬁ?é;uﬂﬁiﬁmLﬁfmsgn};mm@ﬁm:nujﬁEg:l istig§2 fewnn 512023
PN S S nnig NBC angamamaismisunaidvmenwaniyBBB I8
MIUN G AMTUATE S 1t Fitch 1811y §22 fo1 512022 (2022: BBB by Fitch)

a

SRBIBSMBBRBNRE

]

BSWISESUBNUSMBUIMA THUANBAINIG HWwNIRTmSEsmugny i
HISGSS 3,003,541 HANIEIETA U 15,953,770M81{) U (20218 3,718,171 ANIHIEIA U
15,147,829M §1j) V) AAUHMNSIMEHS{NG ECL My CIFRS 9 [dritsGgs
4,559,989 HANIMIBIA U 18,636,677 MBI (2021% 3,923,0095 ANIHIBIA U
15,982,339 M§1i) )

SRS

SAnUMIMAjEEsis

2022 2021

il M8 GG msn

(AANARIEIT (AANGRIEIT

g 2.3) g 2.3)

NS §El'q{iLU‘ﬂS 2,591,500 10,591,460 1,242,752 5,055,515
ER] SU{MARY Ity NBC 811

GRIANII 9 502,583 2,054,057 176,435 717,738

3,094,083 12,645,517 1,419,187 5,773,253
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22,

23.

24,

[}

IN) &

SRNSFNIINS

Samwmiimathujsm s

imAvIHmsmuinng
#etnnu Shimand
[MAUIDAS]
gnnuafas

Y

olo

) a o
ISRsRs RentjsiCoang

sanwignpw §hnlipiiiani
mngrLd'wﬁ
igreunismisu§RAIRANAS
Sty g

samwigayn §aaly i an
ALGIMA

Ignges Banlisitnaningg

SRMNESBHBH

{ma)iag
MIGAMW SHHAU TSI Y

IURUHoA

<
i §12022
43 a
2022 2021
ganIIsin M8 GG men
(AANATHI (AANATHI
g 2.3) g 2.3)
333,477 1,362,921 327,518 1,332,343
313,874 1,282,803 211,790 861,563
84,429 345,061 186,859 760,142
9,307 38,038 12,253 49,845
741,087 3,028,823 738,420 3,003,893
2022 2021
GRS mERIU  FRNIHIGTA ms v
(AANARIEIT (AANGRIEIT
g 2.3) g 2.3)
480,724 1,964,719 255,578 1,039,692
354,226 1,447,721 323,138 1,314,525
834,950 3,412,440 578,716 2,354,217
(258,274) (1,055,565) (142,552) (579,902)
576,676 2,356,875 436,164 1,774,315
2022 2021
GG msRlu  geninieia ms
(AANARIEIT (AAN&RTENT
g 23) g 2.3)
447,014 1,826,946 519,280 2,112,431
128,404 524,787 165,557 673,486
575,418 2,351,733 684,837 2,785,917
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25.

26.

sesaspRuimemrhsigss iddiys)
i tmisuTigeumy igdst fe 512022
SRS HESE
BEBEMES;SN
2022 2021
FRNIEIGTA M ganiEIGia men
(AANAAIEIT (AANGRIENT
g 2.3) e 23)
RS (Aanawgiiug 10 11 §1112) 408,674 1,670,251 418,181 1,701,160
Samuwnismhinn 132,319 540,788 127,510 518,711
misfdsh Sumils eI gsw 104,885 428,665 32,159 130,823
animiggiwing 97,551 398,691 25,478 103,645
NI ” 80,576 329,314 36,848 149,898
runigAGny i 64,385 263,141 70,056 284,988
MIGUENjNsAigNU Smiguit:
NG (FANA TS 12) 44,517 181,941 26,627 108,319
migainu SnisH 41,978 171,564 20,441 83,154
Farfn 39,525 161,539 36,961 150,357
e 13,332 54,488 13,033 53,018
M 9,787 39,999 6,358 25,864
§ripi fhémndsnanminn: 9,503 38,839 3,017 12,273
samuaimigdang 8,728 35,671 5,288 21,512
SAmus e A MmN i 5,571 22,769 4,288 17,442
MG AMUIG e A 17,388 71,065 25,385 103,266
1,078,719 4,408,725 851,630 3,464,430
sSmese/(MmindEmsns) isminnsearameifogs
2022 2021
GG MR GRS msnjw
(AANAATEIT (AANGRIEIT
mig23) e 2.3)
AANAS SHUNUAS
(AANFRIIIIVE 8) 716,850 2,929,766 284,407 1,156,968
suuangj Shymaurgsinmi
NI (AANATEITIUE 5 §116) (263,143) (1,075,465) (1,401,148) (5,699,870)
maimmnagngms
(ﬁiﬂnﬁmﬁmn}[mg 27) (85,790) (350,624) 142,370 579,161
367,917 1,503,677 (974,371) (3,963,741)
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a a
P

27. HEMRR SO wsSumE

(7) AIFTSIHAN F18

2022 2021

FRNIEIGTA My GRiEIGIa me s
(AANG T (AANE T
g 2.3) g 2.3)

GinnAtssnnasimyusity
gsmsiimes 7,062,155 28,863,027 12,034,789 48,957,522
MM e 2,863,270 11,702,184 1,753,162 7,131,863
B8annnas 11,149,372 45,567,483 4,599,059 18,708,972
putts 21,074,797 86,132,694 18,387,010 74,798,357

UlipuEuls ECL fI{MIUMISNRUSANASIFT Mg jmiviNnmEsen

TEE
2022 2021

ganiaein m8[I GG meijn

(AANARTEIT (AANAIEIT

g 2.3) g 2.3)

igé1 fzunn 212,784 866,882 70,414 284,825
MliﬁﬁL‘“lULflT‘l fI)/BSTmMS S

fU{ENU) ECL (AAna /g

g 26) (85,790) (350,624) 142,370 579,161

UrgREgmyIma - 6,576 2,896

qisdsi ien 126,994 522,834 212,784 866,882

(8) NGLBIIIE

wigngmusingmmsgamamipaigitighsiin  iwpimsianannty
MNEMIUAANWESENAIANAT §0INSMIVATANIS A A A AMARNEIAS DI
mivhngpimsnfn] SvHmahwmmn BUEpimsHsaanwens
qhmsﬁétﬁ Shmifamigma’ miﬁﬁgﬁh;s:mmu:ﬁﬁméﬁmmgmnmgh

UG RUAYM N FIG[AR U UTR{UIF U ETF 1G]]

ann:AvEnndmat aamsiieguantanungMS{RUMS hwiga
FOMIUAPNWIRAGT T 1R I amSInw NNEIMARS HGHISMIURA
powenim Sagutdimasdamafnuuiaang momgisutemaigiing
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28.

28.1

28.2

IN) &

misgeyfiesggand

o

i §12022

a

<4

ATERASTISTRI RTINS L ATG S AN A

=3
3
3
=
i3
=]
@
5
)
0
L2
()
2
-Q0
=4
g
n

hai]

ANSGIS NG WIS U A nm

HUAN UMY WMIUN A A M

(AANARTEIUIVE 16)
mivhrdugsimiunniu
AN (AANGTFITHUE 19)
ARN:{AUADNUAUR RGNS
ann§rug]
[MAVIHETSMUANNG

[IRUEmMIinin g I ytwasg§gans

n

GSIAT TIAR BUNES§ § g ARt
HISAEA aAn1AYLh
(MILN RS LA M )
GAM G MM
Samwiduitgatin
AT ATLIA M U

AnN:RUEDN AU ISy

{ma)ing
HAU NN S

2022 2021
ganiIsin M8 GG men
(AANATHI (AANATHI
g 2.3) g 2.3)
94,876 390,604 33,927 138,219
3,001,024 12,355,216 3,000,000 12,222,000
50,000,000 200,000,000 50,000,000 200,000,000
3,977 16,254 30,700 125,072
- - 73,674 300,148
3,977 16,254 104,374 425,220

2022 2021

ganinsin meu GG msujn
(AANGRIEIT (ARNGRIEIT
e 23) iz 2.3)
195,412 798,649 58,107 236,379
- - 259,175 1,054,324
278,080 1,136,513 391,794 1,593,818
91,310 373,184 87,636 356,503
369,390 1,509,697 479,430 1,950,321
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20, GEmRfnemasie|gnans Sesrans

mnnanmuIs: vinmAimamagnjuny Shdanutid{gnjuny

NI RN SN EN{RIMS FGUBATM UHiuh aRiw: NN

YW U oAy WwEIi MuuTIgeIsimwminn s SMnuiimins

2022 2021
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